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Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Introduction

Kemble Water Holdings Limited (the "Company”} 1s the ultimate parent company of the Kemble Water
Holdings Group (the “Group”) The Company acts as the holding company for the Group and does not carry
out any activittes beyond this role

The Group's principal activity 1s the regulated supply of water and sewerage services through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Thames Water Utiities Limited ("TWUL" or "Thames Water™) In addition the Group also has a
property business, which manages the Group's property portfolic and the sale of property and land that 1s no
longer required by the regulated business, and a water retall business, which has been set up to take
advantage of the opening up of the water industry to competition

The Group’s performance is therefore dependent largely upon the performance of TWUL, which n turn 1s
largely dependent upon the regulated business This report makes reference to the performance of TWUL in
order to provide appropriate explanations as to the performance of the Group The key financial performance
indicators of both the Group and TWUL are presented in the Directors' report on page 6 and 7

The Group’'s management structure separates the management of the Group from the directors of the
Company The Company's directors are all non-executives The executive directors of TWUL also work on
behalf of the Group, 1n addition to their responsibiittes to TWUL There are controls in place to ensure that the
day to day management of the water retail business i1s separated from that of the regulated business
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Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Chairman’s statement

Review of the year ended 31 March 2013

This has been a challenging year for Thames Water and the Kemble Water Holdings Group The excepticnal
weather aggravated a sernes of operational challenges and increased costs The economic downturn caused
customer bad debt to nse and standards of custormner service, while now recovenng, dipped during the year

The early part of 2012 was marked by a drought, caused by the driest two-year period on record, whilst the
end of the year saw widespread flooding resulting from record rainfall In the intervening penod the Company,
in its official capacity of Water and Wastewater Services Provider, played a key role in the smooth running of
the London QOlympic Games

A further £1bn of improvements to the Group's infrastructure took place, including a major expansion of west
London's main sewage works and good progress on the £635m Lee Tunnel sewer Another notable success
was a further improvement in safety performance, with a 24% reduction in reportable injuries A significant
and unavoidable downside to our work to manage the impact of both floods and droughts, however, was an
Increase in operational costs

Rising customer bad debt 1s an remains a concern for the Board, as 1s TWUL's Service Incentive Mechanism
(*SIM") score The Board is focussed on supporting the Chief Executive and his Executive team to deliver a
fundamental review of the structure and operation of every part of the business

The Board 1s also supporting the new Commercial Directorate to develop the Group's activities outside of the
areas traditionally served by TWUL These businesses aim to secure additional revenues by making better
use of Thames Waters core assets and skills to the benefit of both the regulated and non-regulated
businesses

The challenges contributed to a fall in Group underlying operating profit* to £504 5m (2011/12 £536 7m),
mainly as a result of increased bad debt in TWUL The Group's net interest expense fell to £535 8m (2011/12
£587 2m) despite increased borrowing, as the interest charge on RPI linked debt reduced The dip in financial
performance led to the Board's decision to reduce dividends declared this year £74 5m (2011/12 £165 1m),
with no distnbutions to shareholders in the second half of the year This resulted in total distributions
(dividends plus interest payments on the bonds i1ssued by Kemble Water Euroband Ple) to the Group's
shareholders dropping 54% to £92 Om (2011/12 £200 Om)

Regulatory developments

Working together with the wider industry, TWUL was able to agree to Ofwat's proposed changes to Thames
Water's licence These changes enable Ofwat to carry out two separate price-setting controls at the industry
review of prices in 2014 (*PR14") One would be for retail (customer services and account handling) and
another for wholesale (pipes and treatment works) The Board welcomes these changes and therr wider am
of expanding, over time, the competitive market within the water industry for the benefit of customers

The draft Water Bill published in July 2012 takes the Government's competition agenda forward The new bill
aims to make 1t easier for commercial non-domestic customers in England and Wales to change their water
suppliers It will also open up the water and sewerage market to new companies Competition for non-
domestic customers in Scotland was introduced on 1 Apnl 2008

As a response to these changes in the Water Sector the Group has set up a new subsidiary, Thames Water
Commercial Services Limited (“TWCSL") to look for commercial opportunities within these newly competitive
markets The Board were pleased to see that TWCSL gained Water Supply Licenses for both the English and
Scottish markets in 2012/13 and that early in 2013/14 TWCSL won its first customer

3
*Underlyting operating profit excludes the impact of exceptional tems 2012/13 £nil (2011/12 £40m pension curtalment gain)




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Chairman’s statement (continued)

Future outlook

| do not expect the coming year to provide any less of a test for the Group Preparations for PR14 will be a
key area of focus In December 2013, Thames Water will submit its bustness plan to Ofwat for the five years
from 2015 Before this submission TWUL will complete a major consultation with its customers to ensure the
plan meets their expectations whilst keeping bills as low as possible

In addition to planning for the next five-year regulatory pertod, TWUL s defining its water resource plans for
the penod to 2040, by which time 1t expects to be supplying 1 4 millon more people than today Customers
are also being asked for their views on these plans

In the near term the Group will continue to work with Government and Ofwat to finalise a funding structure for
the nationally important Thames Tideway Tunnel The proposed structure envisages a separately regulated
company will construct the Thames Tideway Tunnel, thus minimising the cost to Thames Water customers

The tunnel 1s urgently needed to tackle major discharges of sewage into the River Thames for London’s
overstretched Victonan sewerage network It 1s essental if the UK 1s to meet the requirements of the Urban
Wastewater Treatment Directive

We will also continue to support the Commercial Directorate as they look for the nght opportunities to grow
their businesses, ensuring that the Group and TWUL have the nght governance structures i place as
competition increases and regulation changes

In taking forward these plans we will not lose sight of our essential purpose — delivering safe, reliable services,
along with fair returns for shareholders, while continuing to protect the natural environment on which the
Group's businesses depends

P =

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Chairman
6 June 2013




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report

The Directors present therr report and the audited financial statements of Kemble Water Holdings Limited and
its consohdated subsidianes for the year ended 31 March 2013  Unless otherwise stated, alt current year data
included in this review 1s for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“2012/13")

Business review
Principal Activities

The principal activity in the Group 1s the regulated supply of water and sewerage services by its wholly owned
subsidiary, TWUL The Company’s pnncipal activity 1s to act as the holding ccmpany for the Group

TWUL 1s the largest supplier of water and provider of sewerage services in the UK, based on the number of
customers served It 1s one of 10 companies currently hoiding appointments as water and sewerage
undertakers in England and Wales, with a further 11 companies holding appointments as water only
undertakers

In total, the area served by Thames Water occupies approximately 13,331 km® and encompasses more than
9% of the area of England and Wales This includes London and extends as far as Cirencester in the west,
Dartford in the east, Banbury in the north and Haslemere in the south This area has a population of about
14m people, which represents nearly a quarter of the total population of England and Wales In approximate
terms, Thames Water supplies 3 6m properties (just over 8 8m people) with water, and collects sewage from
5 1m properties (about 14m people), representing 97% of households in its sewerage region

Whilst the regulated supply of water and sewerage services provides over 97% of the Group's turnover, the
Group also operates a commercial water retail business (TWCSL), a property business outside of TWUL and
some non-regulated activities within TWUL

Business strategy

The Group’s sfrategy 1s two-fold For the regulated business of TWUL, the aim I1s to deliver safe reliable
services for customers while ensunng safe reliable returns for shareholders This means keeping customers’
bills as low as possible whilst investing efficiently In TWUL's assets to ensure its customers’ needs are met
now and in the future From a shareholder perspective, this means meeting and outperforming our regulatory
outputs and financial settlement to provide the returns they require and expect

Outside of the regulated business, the Group aims to utiise its 400 years of expenence delivering water and
wastewater services iIn TWUL's home region of London and the Thames Valley, to offer expert insight that can
help businesses cut costs, hit sustamabilty targets and simplfy administration in the geographical areas
where the retall market 1s opening up In order to facilitate this, the Group has set up a new subsidary,
TWSCL This entity will be used to enter into the competitive markets In the Water Industry as they are
opened up and, In conjunction with the existing businesses within the Group’s Commercial Directorate will look
to benefit both the regulated and non-regulated going forward




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

Financial Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Group Thames Water Utilities Limited
(Regulated business)

2013 2012 % Change 2013 2012 % Change
Turnover 1,803 6 1,700 2 61 1,758 9 16709 53
Underying operating expenditure {775 2) (681 9) 137 (769 8) (665 8) 156
Depreciation, infrastructure renewals charge (523 9) (481 8) X {457 5) (414 6) 103
and amortisation
Undertying operating profit 504 5 536 7 {60 5434 594 4 (8 6)
Net interest expense {535 8) (587 2) (8 8) (415 0) {425 4} (24)
Underlying (loss)/profit before tax (20 1) (70) 187 1 1284 1690 {24 0)
Total net capital expenditure 969 2 10638 (89 963 2 1,056 1 (8 8)

Underlying measures exclude the impact of exceptional items 201213 £nil (2011/12 £40m (before tax) pension curtailment gain)

As the Group's performance 1s largely dependent upon the regulated business within TWUL, pages 7 to 17 of
this report are an extract from the business review contained within the TWUL annual report That section
explains the operating and financial performance of TWUL

Group turnover

Turnover from the regulated business makes up over 7% of the Group's turnover Turnover for the year was
£103 4m (6 1%) higher than the prior year at £1,8036m (2012 £1,700 2m), with the regulated turnover
increasing 5 3%

Non-regulated turnover increased by over 50% to £44 7m (2011/12 £29 3m) This was drniven by increased
activity in the property business, including 3 significant land sates which were completed in March 2013 The
property searches business also performed well in 2012/13 generating £16 3m (2011/12 £11 Om) of turnover

Group underlying operating expenditure

Underlying operating expenditure for the year has increased by £93 3m (137%) to £7752m (2011/12
£681 9m) compared to the prior year This increase was the result of increased bad debt expense, operating
costs increases due mainly to exceptional weather and inflationary pressures impacting TWUL's operating
expenditure  Non-regulated operating expenditure fell to £5 3m (2011/12 £1€ 1m) This year on year
reduction included a number of provision releases, as the wind down of the operations the Group has exited
from In previous years continued It also reflects the final settliement with a third party of an overage payment
on a property development site

Depreciation, infrastructure renewals charge (“IRC”) and amortisation

Depreciation, IRC and amortisation charges increased £42 3m reflecting the £3bn spent on the Group's
regulated asset base so far In AMP 5 The amortisation of the Group’'s goodwill ansing on the acquisition of
the Thames Water Group by the Kemble Water Holdings Group was £44 9m (2011/12 £44 5m)

Group underlying operating profit

Operating profit has decreased by 6% to £504 5m (2012 £536 7m) Non-regulated operating loss declined to
£38 9m (2011/12 £57 7m) Excluding the amortisation charge noted above, the operating profit of the non-
regulated business was £6 1m (2011/12 operating loss of £13 2m) Looking at the operating profit, excluding
the amortisation, gives an indication of the performance of the non-regulated businesses and the Group costs
incurred outside of TWUL

Group net interest expense

Net interest expense decreased to £535 8m (2012 £587 2m) This reflects the lower interest charge on index
linked instruments resulting from the lower level of RPI of 3 1% in 2012/13 {2011/12 4 8%) The reduction I1s




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

partially offset by increased Interest expense due to the increase in net debt to £9,606 4m at 31 March 2013
(£8,962 Om at 31 March 2012)

Caprital expenditure
The Group has spent around £1bn dunng the third year of AMP5 tn delivenng capital regulatory outputs The

requlated business I1s on track to deliver the required investment programme of £4 9hn over this regulatory
period

TWUL’s performance review

The following section 1s an extract from TWUL's annual report for the year ended 31 March 2013
section Thames Water 1s used to describe the regulated business of the group

In this

Key Performance Indicator summary - TWUL

The following Key Performance Indicators are considered crucial to measuring the success of our business
and are monitered by the Board They include the measures that Ofwat require us to report and others that
are selected ourselves to align with Thames Water's proposed future outcomes for customers and other
stakeholders They provide a snapshot of performance duning 2012/13

Caring for our Providing a safe

Providing value

Providing a safe | Limiting our

customers, our
community and
our people

Heallh
and safety

Senvice

O incentive

mechanism®

Corporate

O responsibility

index

*Ofwat KPls

Most indicators are “green”, but there are four areas with “amber”,

1

and reliable
water service

Drinking
water quality

Security of
supply index”

@
interuptions”
Assel

O performance”

{above ground)

(below ground)

and reliable
wastewater
service

O Sewer flooding”

Discharge
compliance”

O performance”

({below ground)

sewer flooding due to the number of incidents,

environmental
impact

Greenhouse
gas emissions

-

Follution
incidenis”

O Leckage®

Condition
of §551°s

for money

Credit rating
Gearing
Interest cover®

2 asset performance {below ground) due to the downgrading of our waste water network from stable to
marginal,

3 pollution incidents due to the number of incidents which exceeded the industry average for 2008 to
2010, and,

4 post tax return, which has fallen below the target mainly as a result of the nsing levels of bad debt

caused by customers not paying therr bills due to the economic downturn

In this performance review we discuss the KPIs and the impacts on the operational and financial results of

TWUL




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report — Review of TWUL'’s performance (continued)

Caring for our customers

We are committed to delivering a good service and aim to put customers at the heart of
everything that we do We have made some big improvements over the year, but customer
service remains a top priority and we realise that we have to keep doing better

Providng a good service to our customers 1s
really important to us We aim to,

s do the nght thing for our customers,

« deliver the basics and get things right first
time,

s mprove our services so that things go
wrong less often and customers are
pleased with the work that we do,

« nvest in our people to build a stronger
customer service culture

Our commitment to providing a high-quality
service 1s detalled in our Customer Guarantee
Scheme, which sets out our standards and the
compensation payments we will make if we fall to
meet themm The Scheme I1s availlable on our
website

(http //www thameswater ¢o uk/tw/commen/downl
oads/literature-customer-quarantee-
scheme/customer-quarantee-scheme-detailed-
version pdf)

How did we do?

KPI Service Incentive Mechamsm (“SIM”) 62 90 points
(2011112 62 81 ponts)

SIM 1s a mechamsm used to measure the quality
of service prowided to customers, with both
qualitative and quantitative elements

We are disappointed with our customer service
performance Simply put, we did not do as well as

we wanted to It was a challenging start to the year
and the introduction of a new IT system, together
with the heavy rainfall put a strain on our resources
and the service we were able to provide

We took steps to put things nght, including
developing and implementing a 10 point plan to
improve customer service As a result, the second
half of the year has seen a significant drop In the
number of written complaints we received and our
call handling and follow up actvities improved for
customers

Whntten complaints fell by 6% compared to 2011/12
In total, we received and responded to 32,000
written complaints (2011/12 34,000)

Based on quarterly Ofwat-commissioned customer
satisfaction surveys, our overall score was 3 9 out
of 5 This 1s a disappointing drop from the 41
achieved last year

Our overall annual SIM performance has seen a
small improvement, from 62 61 out of 100 to 62 90
Although under Ofwat's cnteria, this level of
perfformance 1S given a ‘“green” status, we
recognise that it 1s simply not good enough

We have the plans in place to improve and
recognise that we need to continue to improve our
service to customers with this remaining a key
focus of the Board into 2013/14 and beyond




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report — Review of TWUL'’s performance (continued)

Caring for our people

We aim to recruit and retain the best people, and help them reach their true potential We want all our
employees and contractors to be safe and healthy Our vision i1s to achieve zero incidents and zero
harm, to our staff, contractors and everyone affected by our work, by never compromising on health

and safety

KPl Reportable injuries 0 25 injunes per 1,000 employees
(2011712 0 33 injuries per 1,000 employees)

Health, safety and wellbeing

This 1s our top prionty Our shared vision for our
employees, contractors and wisitors IS zero
accidents, zero harm and zero compromise

Overall the position 1s good and duning 2012/13
our health and safety performance has showed
improvement, with a reduction in the number of
significant incidents and a 24% decrease in the
number of Reporting of Injunies, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations ("RIDDOR”")
reportable injunes Qur KPI 15 therefore given a
green status

However, there 1s still more that can be done, for
example, our lost time njuries have increased
shightly in 2012/13 (from 0 91 to 0 85 injunes per
1,000 employees)

We have taken significant steps to help us
improve our performance These included,

o a 50% Increase in health and safety site
inspections compared to 2011/12, with
11,389 completed during the year,

e delivery of an extensive health and safety
training programme with over 6,000 days
of training delivered 1n 2012/13,

¢ working in partnership  with  our
contractors through an established Health
and Safety Leadership Team to set a
series of essential standards for high nsk
activities

During 2012/13, we developed a wellbeing and
stress policy for our employees

Traning and guidance for managers was
developed to help them recognise and manage
employees with symptoms of stress related ill-
health, and to help employees to recognise and
manage their own stress levels

However, we recognise that there 1s stll some
way to go to achieve the vision of zero accidents
and zero harm

Recruiting and retaining

Thames Water 1s committed to developing new
talent We have been operating a successful
Apprenticeship Programme for many years We
currently have 47 apprentices in the business and
are investing in another 15 apprentices in 2013/14,
including for the first ime, higher apprenticeships n
our laboratories

We also have a Graduate Programme which seeks
to nurture future people managers and leaders
During 2012/13 we recruited 23 graduates onto this
programme

Providing support and opportunities

We realise the success of our business 15 highly
dependent on the quahty and performance of our
employees Learning and development s
fundamental to ensurnng we have capable,
confident and skilled people throughout the
business We use our Talking Talent process to
identify individuals’ potential, retention risks and
strengthen our successton planning

Durtng 2012/13, over 7,000 formal learning and
development days were completed In addition,
6,000 days of Health & Safety training were
completed

Employee involvement

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and the
Executive team hold quarterly management
briefings with managers to provide the opportunity
to discuss performance and how Thames Water
can continue to move forward There were also a
seres of “Roadshows” dunng the year when the
executive team wisited 40 of our sites to bnef and
engage with the site teams  We have also
launched an “adopt a site” pregramme In which
senior managers provide support to a specific
operational site

Internal publications (“Management toolkit” and
“The Source") provide support for the changes and
transformation happening across Thames Water
This 1s In addition to the further improvement of
Thames Water's corperate and local
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Directors’ report — Review of TWUL's performance (continued)

communication channels that deliver regular
communication, nformation and updates to
employees Corporate communication nclude
Thames Water-wide Team Talk briefings, a
weekly e-brief containing a message from the
CEQ, Thames Water's internal portal web pages
and specific prionty news updates and managers’
key information

Formal consultation with employees 1s undertaken
in partnership with the recognised Trade Unions
Consultation with management level employees
typicaily takes place on an individual basis, except
in the case of changes that affect whole areas of
the business In these circumstances,
consultation takes place on a Thames Water-wide
basis with employee representatives being
elected for the relevant area

Caring for our community and stakeholders

Engaged and focused

We run an annual employee engagement survey,
which gives our people the chance to confidentially
provide their honest views on what It 1s ke to work
for Thames Water During 2012/13 we saw a slight
dip In the overzll engagement survey results The
survey took place against a challenging business
backdrop and it 1s our am to address areas
identified in the coming year

We have a performance and development review
process (PDR) that 1s core 1n setting expectations,
performance objectives and development with our
people every year, focussing employees on what Is
important in their roles

We aim to contribute positively to the community, to be a good neighbour and to act on the views of

our stakehotders

KPPl Corporate responsibility index Platinum (2011/12
Platinum)

Listening to our stakeholders

Listening to and acting on the views of our
stakeholders 1s really important to us and over the
past year we did this 1n a number of ways,

¢ we consulted with our customers and
other stakeholders on major projects such
as the upgrade of Deephams sewage
works,

s we consulted on our long-term business
strategy,

e we held our annual stakeholder event to
meet with key interest groups to discuss
how we were doing and what we had
planned,

e we also met regularly with our “Customer
Chailenge Group”, made up of a range of
stakeholders, to discuss and be
chatlenged on our longer term plans

10

The feedback provides extremely useful information
to use which we are using to develop our plans for
the future, including those for submission as part of
the 2014 price review

In October 2012, we contacted 2 two million of our
wastewater-only customers to highhight the impact
of the Thames Tideway Tunnel on therr future bills

Being a good neighbour

One area in which we seek to coninbute to our
communities 18 our community speaker programme
Our employee volunteers gave over 100 talks to
schools and community groups

In addition we are developing education centres at
our Slough, Walthamstow, Maple Lodge and Didcot
sites and have completed the new angling academy
at our Walthamstow Reservoirs fishery
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Directors’ report — Review of TWUL’s performance (continued)

A safe and reliable water service

We aim to provide a safe and reliable water service that is available when our customers require it

This means supplying our customers with water
that meets all health and safety requirements,
whilst making sure that water reaches our
customers' taps all day, every day

Providing safe and clean drinking water

KPI Drinking water quality 99 97% (2011/12 99 98%)

Our drnnking water quality remains among the
best in the werld During the year ended 31
December 2012, we carned out more than
400,000 tests to ensure our water met stnngent
UK and European standards and achieved a
comphance score of 99 97% This 1s shightly lower
than for the year ended 31 December 2011, but
remains above the industry average

The number of drinking water quality related
contacts we received from customers remained
very low at 0 69 per 1,000 people This compares
favourably to the industry average of 1 91

Providing a reliable supply of water

KPl Supply interruptions 0 22 hours (2011/12 0 21
hours}

Relability of supply 1s measured by the number of
interruptions to supply which our customers
experienced last year On average, each property
was without supply for 0 22 hours (13 minutes)
This performance I1s slightly worse than last year
due to teething troubles with a new IT system
{which affected the speed at which we responded
to such incidents), but continues to be assessed
as good In comparison to other companies

KP! Securnty of Supply Index 100 (2011/12 100)
L

Longer term reliability 1s measured by the secunty
of supply index This measures the balance
between the amount of water avallable and the
demand for water from our network We have
achieved an index of 100, the maximum, for the
last three years which means that we should
never have to ntroduce severe water use

restricttons, but may need to apply a (temporary
use) hosepipe ban during a really dry year This
happened in April 2012 However, the following
months were so wet that we were able to Lift the
restrictions in June 2012

To encourage and support customers to use water
wisely we have a meternng and water efficiency
programme

Abaut 30% of our domestic customers have water
meters Our customers can request a meter free of
charge and in 2012/13 we Iinstatled 29,083 meters
for customers who requested one

As well as making sure that water 1s used wisely,
we completed work at two water treatment works
(Manor Road and Ashdown Park) to increase our
avallable supplies by 4 milion litres per day These
projects cost £1m and are required to serve the
additional customers expected from population
growth in our area

Looking after our assets

KP1 Asset performance (above ground) Stable (2011/12
Stable)

= == T =

KPI Asset performance (below ground) Stable (2011/12
Stable

The performance of our water mains, pumping
statons and treatment works (serviceabihty) 1s
measured by analysing trends in performance
against a range of measures This analysis shows
that the perfermance of our assets has remained
“Stable” this year This means that we are investing
the nght amount

Delivering our outputs
in 2012/13, we have successfully met all the key
outputs required by our regulators for the water

service We invested £237m in mamntaining existing
water assets and £69m developing new ones

11
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Directors’ report — Review of TWUL’s performance (continued)

A safe and reliable wastewater service

We will provide a safe and reliable wastewater service that 1s available when our customers require it

This means disposing of our wastewater in a way
that meets all health and environmental standards,
whilst taking away customers’ wastewater without
Inconvenience every day

Transporting wastewater from homes to
treatment works safely

KPI Repeat sewer flooding 549 incidents (2011/12 355
incidents)

Most of the me we got this nght, however when
we get it wrong, this 1s extremely distressing for the
customers affected as it can cause gardens and
properties to flood

The sewer flooding KP! measures incidents of
internal flooding at properties which have also
flooded in previous years This s because
companies should take action to prevent repeat
flooding This year there were 549 such repeat
incidents, an increase of 194 1n comparnson to the
previous year

The record rainfall in the year caused large
guantities of groundwater and river water to enter
our sewers We deployed tankers around the clock
to take away excess water from overloaded
sewers to prevent the sewers from overflowing and
flooding properties However, In some areas the
network could not cope and sewers overflowed
causing flooding We recognise, however, that
regardless of these exceptional circumstances, we
have not always provided the best service to our
customers

Preventing sewer flooding 1s one of our key
priorties and we have a range of measures to help
us to iImprove, including work to reduce blockages
as well as work to increase the capacity of our
sewers In pinch point areas

Managing and treating wastewater reliably

KPI Discharge compliance 99 13, (2011/12 99 71%)

The Environment Agency sets a quality target for
each of our 350 sewage treatment works During
2012/13, we achieved a complance level of over
98%, which 15 a leading position across the
ingustry

12

Sludge disposal

KPI Sludge disposal 100% (2011/12 100%)

Sewage gludge 1s the main solid left behind after
wastewater has been treated

The KPI measures the percentage of sewage
sludge disposed of satisfactonly All of our sludge
was disposed of safely, therefore this measure
shows a green status

Limiting odour from works

We aim to be a good neighbour, minimising the
annoyance occastonally caused by odour from our
works We have completed work to improve odour
control at six sites with a further three sites to be
completed by 2015

in addition, as part of the £140m upgrade of
Mogden sewage works, which increased capacity
by 54%, we have installed odour monitoring
equipment further improving existing odour control
During the vyear, long runming group legal
proceedings relating to odour at Mogden have also
conciuded

Looking after our assets

KPI Asset performance (above ground) Stable (2011/12
Stable)

= = T s =t
= PR

KPI Asset performance (below ground) Marginal (2011/12

Stable)

The rating for our sewers and pumping stations
moved from "stable” to “marginal” this year, which
Is a real concern This was due to the increase In
the number of sewer flooding and pollution
incidents from our sewer network We have plans
In place to address this as quickly as possible

Overall delivery of regulatory outputs

In 2012/13, we invested £225m In maintaining
existing wastewater assets and £447m developing
new ones We met our targets for delivery of
specific projects to mamtain and 1mprove our
assets However, as described above, we did not
meet our target for a “stable” rating for our sewers
and pumping stations
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Limiting our environmental impact

What we do impacts on the environment in many ways We have a duty to protect the environment,
both now and in the future and we take this very senously.

Limiting and responding to chmate change

Climate change requires us to act today so we are
prepared for tomorrow

Understanding and addressing the causes of
climate change and adapting to s consequences
are key elements of our business planning Recent
exceptional weather cannot be ignored and has a
major iImpact on our business

Reducing emissions

KPI Greenhouse gas enussions 770 KtCOze (2011/12
741 KtCOqe)

By 2015 we aim to have cut our greenhouse
{GHG) emissions {CO;e — carbon dioxide
equivalent) by 20% compared with 1990 levels.

To date we have reduced emissions by 12 5%,
despite serving the equivalent of 3 miflon more
customers than in 1990 and having to meet today’'s
higher treatrment standards The reduction 1s lower
than the previous year due to the increased
pumping and treatment of wastewater resulting
from recard rainfall

We generated 156GWh of renewable energy at
our operational sites We used 151GWh of this
electricity ourselves and exported the remaining
GWh to the National Grnd In total, 12 5% of our
electncity needs were covered by self-generated
renewable electricity

In 2012113 we increased our renewable energy
generation capacity by 1,001 5 kW by

» Instaling an additional 980kW  of
photovoltaic  solar  energy  generation
across 10 sites

s |Ipstaling a small (11 5kW) hydroelectric
turbine at Oxford sewage treatment outfall

Since 2007/08 we have reduced our consumption
of energy by 5% from 1,348 GWh to 1,282 GWh
Last year, we delivered 20 3 GWh of new energy
efficiencies through installing sub meters at sites to
identify opportunittes to cut energy usage and
through tmproving pumping station and sewage
treatment work performance
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Our efforts to reduce carbon emissions are
recognised by our accreditaton to the Carbon
Trust Standard

Preventing pollution incidents

KP1 Pollution incidents

All sewerage 68 5 incidents per 10,000 km sewer
(201112 37 8 incidents per 10,000 km sewer)
Sericus sewerage 2 3 incidents per 10,000 km sewer
(2011112 2 9 incidents per 10,000 km sewer)

The EA categeornises pollution incidents on a scale
from one (most serious) to four {no significant
environmental impact) It maintains the official
database of all reported poliuton ncidents and
confirms numbers for each calendar year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total
number of Category 1 and 2 pollutions were 16 (21
in 2011} The number of Category 3 pollutions
increased 89% to 461

The two pollution incident KPls are flagged as
“amber”, reflecting the companson with the 2008-
10 water industry average {as required by Ofwat)

One of our most senous Incidents was at
Beddington sewage works where a fire destroyed
the powerhouse and control room, resulting In total
loss of treatment capabiiity This caused
significant pollution te the River Wandle Despite
our immediate response, a number of fish were
kiled This was very disappointing given all the
hard work and investment to improve the river after
a more senous pollution incident in 2007

The overall increase in pollution incidents last year
was partly due to record levels of ranfall, with
some sewers overflowming and causing poliuticn as
a result It was also partially due to an
improvement in our processes which meant that
we were able to identify more incidents and report
these to the Environment Agency ("EA™) However,
we also think that our performance last year also
had an impact, for example the sheer volume of
rainfall during the year led to a significant increase
in the number of incidents, which in turn affected
the speed at which we able to respond to
incidents We are working hard to improve our
performance
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As part of this plan we have Iintroduced a 24/7
pollution and tankering desk to speed up response
to incidents We also have a team focused on
cleaning and maintenance at blockage hotspots,
and we have improved alarm systems to help
identify problems with our sewers and pumping
stations before they cause a pollution incident

Managing leakage

KPI Lezkage 646 million litres per day (2011/12 637
million htres per day)

Leakage remains a key issue for the business,
reflecting the priorities of our customers and
stakeholders Although leakage 1s slightly higher
than 1n 2011/12 due to a colder winter, we have
beaten our leakage target for the seventh year in
succession This has been achieved by repairing
leaks and replacing 73 km {202 km 1n 2011/12) of
old pipes Since Apnl 2007 we have replaced
1,886 km of water mains out of around 31,000 km,
or 6% of the network at a cost of £797 5m

To completely replace the water network with
modern equivalent assets and effectively minimise
leakage would take a number of years and cost In
excess of £12 billon In anybody's estimation this
Is a significant cost to the business, which would
impact customers’ bills — it 1s simply not wiable

In order to manage leakage we use a number of
tools and nitiatives,

o trunkminder — Montors our trunk mans to
identify underground leaks as soon as they
occur This allows time to repair a leak before
it causes the pipe to burst If a burst does
occur, the technology raises the alarm so that
the pipe can be fixed more quickly,

e  “Smart” Metering — A tnal carned out using
water meter technologies This allows for
meters to be read remotely on a more regular
basis to help identify leaks from water supply
pipes and respond quickly,

» JD7 Pipescan+ technology - to get full hfe use
out of existing pipes and to build knowledge of
ther deterioration rates This will help to
reduce operational and maintenance costs
and disruption

We have recduced leakage from over 780 mid in
2006/7 to 646 mid in 2012/13, however, significant
parts of our water network are over 100 years old
and it 1s an on-going challenge to maintain them to
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the standard required, both in terms of physically
performing the work safely and without causing
significant disruption As part of our AMP 6 plans
we are proposing to reduce leakage by a further 53
mid by 2020, through a combination of further
mains replacement and effictent management of
the network It 1s estmated that the investment
needed to achieve this reduction is in the region of
£300m on top of the current level of investment In
the water network

Managing and reducing leakage remains a prionty
for the Thames Water and investing to reduce
leakage 1s one of the tools used to ensure that
there 15 enough water avalable to serve ocur
customers This 1s, however, an economic and
environmental equation and in order to have
affordable bills for customers we must balance up
the costs of reducing leakage, the costs and
environmental impacts of water abstraction, and
the cost and ability to develop new sources of
water such as trading with other companies

Environmental and wildlife improvements

KPI Condition of SSSI's 99% (2011/12 100%)

We are custodians of a number of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest (“SSSI”), 99% of which were In
‘favourable” and ‘“unfavourable recovering”
conditions  This Key Performance Indicator s
green as we are above the 95% target set by
Natural England

We mproved access to the Crossness Southern
Marshes and Crossness Nature Reserve, at which
a rare bumblebee, the Shrill Carder, was spotted
Its presence demonstrates successful habitat
management

Recycling waste

We continue to lead the way in recyciing matenal
excavated from our street works This was
recycled as reinstated road and pavement surfaces
once the work was complete

We recycled an average of 99 5% of all wastes
produced from capital projects in 2012/13
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Providing value for money and investment

We aim to give value for customers’ money whilst also providing appropriate returns for the mnvestors
who provide the capital that we spend on behalf of customers At a time when household budgets are
tight, 1t 1s more important than ever that we find cost-effective ways to deliver our services

Fmancial Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Key Performance

Indicator Units Description 2013 Target
Average £ per The average combined water and wastewater bill for household |§ 376 Industry
household bill financial year |customers average
Post tax retum® % Current cost operating profit less tax as a return on regulatory 485 det Fmilanon
€ financial year|capital value € e?":né)
Indicates the Company's ability to comply withits (Moody's
Credit rating* Rating licence requirement to maintain an mvestment Corporate l Investmerr:u?]rade credit
grade credi rating Family Ratng § g
Geanng® % This shows net debt as a percentage of total regulatory capital asc Covenant
financial year|value at financial year end ? tngger
Rato of |The interest coverage ratio ts a measure of the number of tmes [l
Interest caver* eamings to |the Company could make the interest payments on its debt with 11 Covenant
interest  |its eamings before interest and taxes This measures the : tngger
payments |Company's ability to repay its debt based on avallable cashflow

*KPI's we are required to report on by Ofwat
Financial KPl commentary

The financial KPIs show that despite the
operational challenges expenenced in 2012/13 and
their resuitant mmpact on TWUL's financial
performance, the overall position remains sound

Our average household bill, which represents the
cost of our services to customers, was £336 for
2012113, £40 below the industry average

This average reflected a 6 7% increase from
2011/12 in regulated bills (RPI of 52% and real
terms increase of 1 5%) TWUL chose to forego a
further increase of 2 7% in 2012/13 to which it was
entitled in the AMP 5 determination This increment
had been allowed to fund costs that TWUL no
longer expected to incur dunng AMP 5 It was
appropriate to pass this saving on to Customers
now rather than waiting for the regulatory process
to complete for AMP6

For 2013/14 customers will see therr bills rise by
around 5 5% (RPI of 3% plus real terms increase of
25%) to enable the continuing mnvestment in
infrastructure to deliver the quality and standard of
services our customers and other stakeholders
expect

The post-tax return, which represents a measure
of the return TWUL makes on its asset base and
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hence to its ulimate shareholders, was 4 31% This
represents a significant reduction from 6 34% In
2011/12 and 4 85% return expected In the final
determination, hence this has been classified as
Amber The reduction has been driven by the
Increased bad debt charges, network costs and
drought costs The restructuning and efficiency
programme currently being undertaken should
impact the post-tax return positively during the
remamder of AMP 5 as cost savings are realised

TWUL maintained its strong investment grade
credit ratings from S&P and Moody's The
Corporate Family Rating (“CFR”} assigned by
Moody's remained at Baa1, this rating reflects the
aggregate ratng of the different classes of
outstanding debt obligations 1ssued by the financing
subsidianes of TWUL It 1s a licence requirement to
use all reasonable endeavours to maintain an
investment grade CFR Maintaining this ensures
TWUL can access the debt funding needed to
deliver the investment programme in an efficient
and cost effective manner

TWUL's gearing reduced 09% to 77 4% and
interest cover ncreased from 14 times for
201112 to 1 7 times for 2012/13
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Turnover

TWUL's turnover for the year was £1,791 9m
(2011/12 £1,694 9m), 5 7% up from the previous
year This increase reflected a 6 7% increase In
regulated bills This increase was partially offset by
lower metered consumption of £9 5m This
reflects our campaign to use water wisely during
the drought at the beginning of the year and then
lower usage in the second half of the year dunng
the wettest year on record

Operating expenditure

TWUL's operatng  expenditure  increased
significantty in 2012/13 to £7851m On an
underlytng basis this represents an increase of
£109 7m from 2011/12 This reflects operating
costs Increases In our networks and customer
service functions and increased bad debt expense,
as well as general inflationary pressures

In the networks there was a significant increase of
activity In the water network additional resource
was mobilised to reduce leakage ahead of the
Olympics, as during the games there were
restrictions on how we were able to work In
London There has also been significant
expenditure on the waste network This included
clearing more blockages than anticipated and the
tankering of waste out of the network, to try to
minimise sewer flooding as a result of the second
wettest year since records began The sheer
volume of ran, especially later in the year when it
was falling on to already saturated ground has
overwhelmed the sewer network in a number of
locations The network was simply ncot designed to
cope with this amount of water We have done
what we can to assist customers in these
circumstances, but we also recognise the
significant distress that sewer flooding causes

We also invested in customer service, spending an
additional £2m employing more people to answer
the phone to customers and to deal with customer
correspondence and complaints This additional
expenditure 18 above the level anticipated In the
Final Determination by Ofwat and 1s therefore not
being paid for by customers

TWUL's bad debt charge in the year has increased
by £23 1m compared to 2011/12 to £93 7m This
charge represents 53% of regulated turnover,
significantly ahead of that expenenced on average
dunng AMP 4 (2 6%)

During the year there was a continued focus on
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TWLUL's debtor collections Reduced collection
rates have required us to review our provisions to
ensure they reflect the harsh economic
environment This has led to an increased level of
provisioning to reflect the current levels of
collections following a comprehensive review of
the judgments taken by management in this area
The bad debt charge of £93 7m compares to a
final determination allowance of £39 8m The level
of bad debt charge 15 a notfiable tem in the final
determination and so, If certain trigger levels are
met, TWUL can apply for an intenim determination
of K ("IDeK") to recover these additional costs
during the current AMP

Going forward, it s feared that the continuation of
the current economic conditions mean that we will
continue to see bad debt charges of around £60m
per year as customers continue to be affected by
the economic downturn

Saving money through innovation

Last year we delivered a number of innovative
projects

Some of these innovations are listed below

In water treatment, we investigated a number of
new ways to minimise biological threats and
reduce costs For example, algal blcoms restrict
the capacity of our water treatment works and
increase treatment costs by around £3 6m a year
A new approach to combatting this problem was in
June 2012 to install a “hving filter’ of baffles and
plants at the outlet tower of one of our reservoirs m
Oxford, to encourage an ecology that eats algae

We are also tnalling an emerging product called
BioBullets to reduce the amount of zebra mussels
which buldd up In our raw water tunnels and
treatment works, causing significant clearance
costs

We committed to invest E£250m n therma!
hydrolysis process at six sewage treatment works
to increase the produchon of renewable energy

We are nstalling Europe's first phosphorus-
recovery system, in Slough sewage works By
recovenng phosphorus, the operation of the site 1s
improved and energy needed to pump sludge
feduced The recovered phosphorus 1s turned into
a slow-release fertiiser By applying this fertiliser
to land we can help close the phosphorus loop and
reduce the loss of this iImportant natural resource

We have been trialing a novel sludge dryer unit
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that turns sewage studge into sustainable solid fuel
with the same energy content as wood chip Tral
batches have been used In our sludge powered
generator (SPG) at Crossness sewage works

Operating profit

In addition to the increase of £109 7m in operating
expenditure, depreciation and Infrastructure
Renewals Charge (“IRC") increased by £41 9m n
2012113, reflecting the high level of capital
investment over the first three years of AMP5 The
increases In operating expenditure  and
depreciation more than offset the increase In
turnover (£97 Om} and so TWUL's operating profit
fell to £549 3m for 2012/13, down 9% on an
underlying basis Underlying operating profit
excludes the impact of exceptional tems 2012/13
£nil (2011/12 £40m pension curtailment gatn)

Capttal expenditure

2012/13 has been ancther successful year for the
delivery of the capital investment programme The
third year of AMP5 has seen around £1bn invested
in delvering all of TWUL's capital regulatory
outputs

In the year TWUL has capitalised £199m on its
infrastructure assets (water and waste networks)
spending money on essential work to improve the
networks by replacing, repamnng and modernising
the pipes, sewers and associated equipment The
plant and machinery fixed asset balance increased
by E457m for works capitalsed in relation to
Thames Water's water and sewage treatment
works and related facilites The assets under
construction balance also Increase by £178m,
reflecting the large number of projects that Thames
Water 1s committed delivenng in AMPS

One of the major areas of spend continues to be
the London Tideway improvements programme
This project includes the construction of the £635m
Lee Tunnel which 15 designed to prevent an
average of 16m tonnes a year of untreated sewage
entering the River Lee from London's Victorian
sewerage network London's five main sewage
treatment works (Beckton, Crossness, Long
Reach, Modgen and Riverside) are also being
upgraded at a cost of £6600m The London
Tideway improvement programme 15 designed to
reduce discharging of untreated sewage Into the
trdal River Thames The upgrades to the Mogden
site (£140m) and the first phase at Long Reach
{£40m) were completed in 2012/13

TWUL has also spent around £33m in 2012/13
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acquiring the sites required for the construction of
the Thames Tideway tunnel These sites will be
used dunng the construction of the Tunnel and
then, where practical and not required for on-going
maintenance access, will be scld off to ensure that
customers do not pay more than 1s absolutely
necessary for the Tunnel

Thames Water 1s on track to deliver its required
investment programme of £49bn over this
regulatory penod  This level of investment n
Thames Water's assets 1s necessary to ensure
that we can continue to provide the water supplies
that customers require and treat the sewage in an
efficent and effective manner

Pensions

TWLUL 1s the sponsoring employer of two pension
schemes, Thames Water Pension Scheme
(“TWPS") and Thames Water Mirror Image
Pension Scheme (“TWMIPS"} Both schemes are
closed to new entrants, although existing members
continue to accrue benefits The combined
pension’'s lability, net of deferred tax, as at 31
March 2013 was £191 5m (2011/12 £1192m), a
deterioration of £72 3m This was principally as a
result of a post-tax actuanal loss in relation to the
pension schemes of £85 5m

TWUL made a deficit repair payment of £25 2m to
the pension funds in the year as part of an
agreement with the trustees to increase its funding




Kemble Water Holdings Limited

Directors’ report - Group performance

Dividends

The Group paid interim dividends totalling £74 5m dunng the year (2012 £165 1m) Together with the interest
pard on the bonds 1ssued by the Company's immediate subsidiary, Kemble Water Eurobond Plc of £17 5m
(2011/12 £34 9m) this gave a total distnbution to sharehclders of £92 Om (2011/12 £200 Om)

The Group’s dividend policy 1s
 To pay a progressive dividend commensurate with the long-term returns and business performance,
after considering the business’ current and expected regulatory and financial performance, regulatory
restrictions, management of economic risks and debt covenants

Birectors, in assessing the dividend to be paid (to a maximum of statutory distnbutable reserves), are requred
to ensure that
» Sufficient hlquidity 1s maintained to enable the business to meet its financial obligations for 15 months
s Post-dividend financial ratios remam within their agreed limits at both the balance sheet date and on a
forward-looking basis

The Board does not recommend a final dividend (2011/12 £nil)
Taxation

The Group’s taxable profits have been substantially reduced by the continuing availability of capital allowances
on the capital investment programme HMRC's capital allowance regime permits companies to delay the
payment of corporation tax, not avoid it, by providing accelerated tax relief for capital investment The
allowances are intended to encourage companies to carry out crucial investment — crucial for business and
customers, and also crucial for the economy at large

We have been investing around £1 billlon each year in assets which qualfy for capital allowances The
mechamsm has resulted in a deferred tax liability of £904 4m being recognised on the Group's balance sheet
This balance represents tax that 1s expected to be paid in future years and the benefit of this deferral has
effectively been passed through to customers in the form of lower bills

Although the Group has not paid any corporation tax in the period it continues to pay business rates, account
for iIncome tax and national insurance on employee remuneration, and pay other taxes for which 15 hable
These payments were approximately £150m in the year ended 31 March 2013 The company's expenditure
with its suppliers and contractors generates substantial additional tax revenues in the wider economy

The credit for taxation shown in the profit and loss account of £0 1m (2012 £6 1m charge), (see note 9 to the
financial statements), includes a credit of £39 2m from a reduction 1n the carrying value of the deferred tax
hability resulting from the announced reduction in the rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% with effect from
1 April 2013  The current tax charge on profits for the year reflects a benefit of £35 4m from the capital
allowances available on the investment programme as noted above which i1s shown as additional deferred tax
for the year

Cash flow

Net cash outflow before financing declined £1059m to £622 O0m as cash flow from operating activities
increased £43 2m, cash out flow for capital expenditure decreased £92 4m to £1,025 Om, dividends decreased
£906m to £74 5m and £107 9m was used te acquire liquid resources (short term-cash equivalent
investments) In addition, the acquisiton payment of £43 3m was additional consideration relating to the
acquisition of the Thames Water Group by the Kemble Water consortium

The Group increased its net debt by £644 5m to fund the capital investment programme, with the result that
there was a decrease 1n cash of £102 2m n the year (2011/12 increase of £11 8m)
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The Group 1s funded using a combination of debt and equity The Group seeks to maintain an efficient capital
structure with a balance of debt and equity whereby debt levels are restricted to imit the nisk of financial
distress, maintain strong credit rattngs and hence optumise the cost of debt The Treasury function ensures the
Group remains an attractive counterparty to lenders

Treasury policy

The Board oversees the Group’s Treasury activities, reviewing policy and approving the Treasury plan on an
annual basis

The Group's treasury operations are managed centrally by a small specialist team, which operates with the
delegated authonty of, and under policies approved by, the Board of Directors  The treasury function does not
act as a profit centre and does not undertake any speculative trading activity The key objectives of the
funding strategy are defined by the regulatory regime within which TWUL operates and are intended to ensure
that it meets all funding related requirements under the terms of its Licence This includes maintaining cash
reserves and access to undrawn committed bank facilities sufficient to fund at least 12 months net cash flow
and to maintain an investment grade credit rating (see “Debt financing” section below) as set out iIn Condition
F of the Licence

A key objective of treasury policy I1s to ensure compliance with financial covenants, including interest cover
and gearing ratios, maintain hquidity and a balanced debt matunty profile, and ensure that at least 85% of the
interest cost within the Secuntisation Group, (being Thames Water Utihties Holdings Limited, TWUL, Thames
Water Utiities Finance Limited, Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Holdings Limited and Thames Water
Utihties Cayman Finance Limited) 1s based on either fixed or RPI-linked interest rates

Financial risk management and material financial instruments

The Group's Executive Management Team receives regular reports from all areas of the business to enable
prompt identification of financial and other nisks so that appropriate actions can be taken

The operation of the treasury function 1s governed by policies and precedures, which set out guidelines for the
management of market nsks including interest rate nisk, foreign exchange risk and inflation and the use of financial
instruments  Treasury pelicy and procedures are incorporated within the financial control procedures of the
Group

The Group's operations expose It to a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in debt market
pnces, price nsk, iquidity nsk, interest rate nsk and exchange rate nsk

Denvative financial instruments, ncluding cross currency swaps, Interest rate swaps and forward currency
contracts are employed to manage the interest rate and currency nsk ansing from the prnimary financial
instruments used to finance the Group’s activities Matching of assets and habilities in foreign currencies Is also
applied wherever practicable The Group actively maintains a broad portfolio of debt, diversified by scurce and
maturty and designed to ensure the Group has sufficient availlabie funds for operations

The Group 1s exposed to commodity price nsk, especially energy price nsk, as a result of its operations The
Group aims to manage its nisk by fixing contract prices where appropriate
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Debt financing
Key features of the Group's capital structure are as follows,

e all debt 1ssued by the secuntised group of companies s documented pursuant to a Common Terms
Agreement as part of the Whole Business Secuntisation (“WBS”) entered into in August 2007 The Group
companies within the Whole Business Secuntisation (“the Secuntisation Group™) include Thames Water
Utilities Holdings Limited and all of its wholly owned substdiaries, including TWUL, Thames Water Utilities
Cayman Finance Limited (TWUCFL) and Thames Water Utilities Finance Limited (TWUF),

* net debt 1ssued by the Group (debt issued by the secuntised group plus debt i1ssued outside the
secuntised group at the Kemble Water Finance level) the ratio of net debt to Regulated Capital Value
(“RCV") within the Group 1s limited to 92 5%,

* net debt 1ssued by the Secuntisation Group Two classes of debt exist within the Secuntisation Group,
{“Class A") debt I1s the most senior debt obligation of the Group and the ratio of Class A net indebtedness
to RCV 1s hmited to 75%  Alongside this class of debt the Securtisaton Group 1s able to issue
subordinated (“Ciass B") debt The ratio of Class A and Class B net indebtedness combined (“Senior net
indebtedness”) to RCV i1s limited to 85% at the TWUL level,

+ each Obligor within the Secuntsation Group has entered into the Security Trust and Inter-creditor Deed
(“STID") with the Secunty Trustee pursuant to which Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited guarantees
the obligations of each other Obligor under the finance documents and the Group and its wholly owned
subsidianes guarantee the obligations of each other under the finance documents, in each case to the
Securty Trustee Following an event of default, the documents provide for an automatc 18 month
standstill of the claims of the creditors that have entered into the STID

Debt financing is raised by the Group, through the Group's wholly owned subsidiaries Subordinated debt 1s
Issued outside of the secuntised group by Thames Water {Kemble) Finance PLC and Kemble Water Finance
Limited The terms of the WBS do not apply to Kemble Water Finance Limited and Thames Water (Kemble)
Finance PLC and the debt these companies hold as they sit cutside of the Secuntised Group

Moody's Investor Service (“Moody’s”) rates subordinated debt (debt held outside of the Secuntisation Group)
at B1 and Fitch rates this debt at BB- Moody's rates the Class A debt as 1ssued by TWUCFL, A- long term
with stable outlook Moody's also 1ssues a Corporate Family Rating for the Secuntisation Group, which stands
at Baa1l Standard and Poor's Rating Services ("Standard and Poor's”) rates Class A debt as issued by
Thames Water Utiites Cayman Finance Limited at A- with a stable outlook TWUL maintams an investment
grade 1ssuer credit rating in accordance with the requirements of its Licence

During the penod, the Group’s financing subsidiary TWUCFL raised two £300m fixed rate bonds, maturing in
2034 and 2046 respectively The net proceeds were loaned to the TWUL on the same terms  In additton, the
Group raised £415m of Class A debt and £100m of class B debt through bilateral loans The Group repaid
capital of £74 5m on finance leases and €500m of TWUCFL's bonds that matured in the year

On 21 May 2013, Kemble Water Finance executed an amendment on its £425m Facilities Agreement after
recewing unanimous lender consent The amendments were to extend the matunty date of the £150m facility
from 31 March 2014 to 30 September 2015 and the margin was aligned with the other drawn element of
£200m which matures in March 2016 At 31 March 2013, £350m of the £425m Facilities Agreement were
drawn (31 March 2012 £350m)
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A summary of the Group's net debt by the different types of debt (shown in the basis used for covenant
calculations) 1s as follows

Net debt analysis 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
£m £m

Subordinated debt (Kemble Water Finance)
Net debt (covenant basis) 7254 698 6

Securitised group (TWUL and subsidiaries)
Class A net debt (covenant basis) 7,3914 6,882 6
Class B net debt (covenant basis) 1,046 6 946 5
Total net debt (covenant basis) 91634 85277
Net debt excluded from covenants 443 1 434 3
Kemble Water Holdings Group reported net debt 9,606 5 8,962 0

The net debt excluded from the covenants includes cash and investments held in companies that are excluded
from covenant calculations, the bonds held in Kemble Water Eurobond PLC (as these are owned by the
Group's shareholders) and the farr value adjustment made to the Thames Water Group's borrowings on
acquisiton by Kemble Water conscrtium

Servicing of debt

TWUL, as the principal trading subsidiary of the Group, 15 the entity that generates substantially all the cash
needed by the Group to service borrowing made against RCV

For the debt held outside the secuntised group, TWUL's dividends are passed up the Group structure and
provide the funding to Thames Water (Kemble) Finance Plc and Kemble Water Finance Limited to enable
these companies to services the debt of £750 0m (31 March 2012 £750m) held at this level |If TWUL was
unable to pay dividends, the Group’s shareholders would have to find an alternative source of external funding
to service these debts

Within the secuntised group, TWUL 1s an obligor, underwriting all the securntised debt (31 March 2013 gross
borrowings of £3,121 4m (31 March 2012 £8,397 6m)) In addition to the debt it holds directly, it also, through
the on-lending arrangements for TWUF's and TWUCFL's borrowings, services the debt held in those
companies
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The following extract from the TWUL financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 shows how the
dividends paid by TWUL have been utihsed within the Group

Thames Water Utilities Limited: Interim dividends

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £fm

External dividend distributions * 74.5 165 1
External interest on Kemble Water Eurobond plc debt 17.5 349
Distnibution to uttimate shareholders 92.0 2000
External interest on Kemble Water Finance Limited debt 60.0 500
Inter-group group relief settlement payments 40.0 -
Inter-group distnbution to parent undertaking ** 39.4 24 4
Inter-group dividend to Kemble Water Limited - 51
231.4 2795

* External dividend distribution represents the payment made by Kemble Water Holdings Limited, the ultimate
parent company from the dividend it recewves indirectly from TWUL

** The immediate parent undertaking, Thames Water Utilittes Holdings Limited (*“TWUHL"} received £39 4m
(2012 £24 4m) from TWUL, which was used by TWUHL to settle its inter-company interest balance with
TWUL

The external interest on Kemble Water Finance Limited debts of £60m (2011/12 £50m) was used to service
debt held by Kemble Water Finance Limited and Thames Water (Kemble) Finance PLC

The inter-group group relief settlement payment was used by Thames Water Limited to settle group relief
balances it owed to TWUL
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Covenant compliance

Under the terms of its finance documents, the Group I1s required to comply with various covenants such as
Interest cover (post maintenance interest cover ratio{"PMICR")) and net debt to RCV These covenants are
measured and submitted to lenders semi-annually and involve both actual data and forecasts The covenants
are calculated for the securitised group and for the Kemble Water Finance group Key financial covenants are
shown below

Covenant Actual Trigger Default

Kemble Water Finance consolidated group

Group net debt to RCV| 84 1% 92 5% 95 0%

PMICR 1 3x N/A 1 05x
Securitised group (TWUL and subsidiaries)

Senior net debt to RCV| 77 4% 85 0% 95 0%

Senior PMICR 17x 11x N/A

Class A net debt to RCV 67 8% 75 0% 85 0%

Class APMICR 2 Ox 1 3x 11x

The Group was in comphance with all its covenants at 31 March 2013

The Group has a number of controls in place to ensure complance with its financial covenants  All the
covenants are calculated monthly, including forward looking calculations to the end of the AMP period, and
reviewed by the TWUL executive, the Group's board and the shareholders In addition, the regulated nature
of the Group’s principle business gives a relatively high degree of certainty as to the forecast cash flows of the
Group, which 1s further supported by a ngorous monthly cash flow forecasting process The hedging polcy
under the Whole Business Securitisation requires 85% of debt within the Secuntisation Group to be either at a
fixed rate of interest, or Index inked This gives the Group a high level of certainty over the cash interest cost

Finally, the Group assesses the ratio of Senior Net Indebtedness (TWUL Senior Debt/RCV above) to the level
of both the stated RCV and the RCV taking into account the Group's best estimates of adjustments that will be
made at the beginning of the next AMP perad

These factors give the Group the confidence that it can operate within the financial covenants listed above
Equity

The Company has £1,991 6m of share capital (31 March 2012 £1,991 6m) In addition, the shareholders
own, In direct proportion to therr shareholdings, £310 4m of bonds 1ssued by the Company's immediate
subsidiary, Kemble Water Eurcbond Plc The Group considers these bonds as part of the shareholder's
investment i the Group and whilst the interest on these bonds take prionty over the payment of a dividend by
the Company, the Board considers the payment of the interest as part of the overall distribution to
shareholders under the dividend policy described on page 18 The bonds are included in the Group’s net debt
at 31 March 2013 of £9,606 4m (31 March 2012 £8,962 0m) However, they are excluded from the
calculations of net debt for the purposes of covenant compliance calcutations

Interest of £17 5m (2011/12 £34 9m) was paid in 2012/13, which together with dividends of £74 5m (2011/12
£165 1m), made the total distribution to shareholders in 2012/13 £92 Om (2011/12 £200 Om)
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Risk overview

The Group's principal activity 1s the delivery of water and waste water services through the principal wholly
owned subsidiary of TWUL The risks of the Group are therefore largely dependent on the regulated business
Management process I1s integrated within the business, and is designed both to identify emerging nisks and to
minimise the adverse impact of emerging and existing nsks Each business area Is responsible for managing
its rnsks and maintaining a risk register Significant nsks are escalated and reviewed by the Executive of
TWUL, and the process Is overseen by the Audit & Risk Review Committee of TWUL (“ARRC") on behalf of
the Board

The Group 1s exposed to a number of nsks and uncertainties that could have a material impact on the Group's
long-term performance are as follows

Delivery of the Thames Tideway Tunnel — As an innovative sclution to the challenge of reducing sewage
discharges into the Thames, the design and construction of the Thames Tideway Tunnel present a number of
major technical and logistical challenges These include the need to secure a number of construction sites In
central Londan, obtaining planning consent via the process for major projects set out in the Planning Act 2008
and managing the inevitable disruption caused by construction activiies A key challenge 1s to manage the
impact of the project (which 1s intended to be undertaken by a stand-alone Infrastructure Provider (“IP")) on the
Group’s credit ratings The Government has indicated that it will provide support to the IP for certain of the
exceptional rnisks involved In the project, but the details of this support and the residual nisk to the Group have
yet to be finalised

Mitigation: The Group I1s working closely with the Government and Ofwat to agree the funding model and
the appropnate organisational structure The preferred route of the stakeholders 1s to establish an
independent IP which will raise funding and deliver and operate the tunnel This will provide value for
money and transparency around nsk and reward, and it 1s expected that the Group will be prevented from
investing in the IP but will continue to be involved A development consent application has been submitted
and accepted for examination by the Planning Inspectorate

Price Review 14 (“PR14”) determination — All UK water and sewerage companies must justify the operating
costs and capital investment needed to deliver service to customers in the five-year period from Apnl 2015
Failure to demonstrate the Thames Water's case to Ofwal's satisfaction may mean that it 1s unable to invest In
asset improvements and / or provide services that the Group beleves will benefit its customers in the long
term or to finance its business plans

Mitigation: The Group 1s well advanced in developing capital plans and has consulted widely with
customers and the Customer Challenge Group Operating plans are in progress, looking to minimize costs
Our approach builds on the experience gained during previous Price Reviews

Increased competition in the water industry - The draft Water Bill published in July 2012 develops
Government's competition proposals from the previous Water White Paper The legislation will change existing
retail and upstream markets by allowing a choice of retailer for all business customers Further iberalisation of
upstream water and sewerage markets Is enabled by the draft Bill but the full scope and timing of any change
remain very uncertain

Mitigation: Preparations for increased compettion include exploiting commercial opportunities as well as
managing rnisk The Group has increased activity outside the region, winning its first commercial customer,
and will need to upgrade systems if it I1s to provide business customers with added value services The full
response to market liberalisation may require structural change
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Employee pension scheme funding — The Group operates two matenal defined benefit pension schemes
Although both are closed to new entrants, the Group remains hable for the historic nghts earned by past and
present employees, and both schemes are currently in deficit on a Gilts valuation basis Under current
assumptions, the deficit 1s expected to increase and this could cause increased employer contributions

Mitigation: The Group has closed the defined benefit schemes to new joiners, and moved a number of
senior employees onto a defined contribution scheme In addition, for the larger scheme benefits are now
being accrued on a career average related earnings basis  Together the scheme trustees, the Group 15
reviewing mechanisms that could reduce its risk, whilst maintaining adequate funding of the schemes

Failure to maintain adequate funding arrangements — The Group will need to renew £450 0m of 364 day
committed faciities by August 2013  As a regulated utility, the Group expects to be able to access financing
but an increase In the cost of funds may put pressure on key financial covenants (as defined by the Group's
capital structure)

Mitigation The Group has an established funding strategy which is reviewed by the Board annually As of
31 March 2013, the Group has adequate cash at bank and short term deposits of £822 4m (31 March
2012 £736 4m) and undrawn committed bank faciibes of £1,690 0m (2012 £1,275 0m} n place to
provide hiquidity as required

Customer experience — Ofwat measure Thames Water's customer service performance using the Service
Incentive Mechamism (“*SIM™) Thames Water 1s currently at the bottom of the industry’s SIM ranking and has
seen a decrease In qualitative customer satisfaction in 2012/13 Failure to meet the SIM target for TWUL over
the remaining years of this regulatory period could lead to a financial penalty in the next regulatory period,
although it 1s not clear how the penalty would be applied

Mitigation® The Group has responded to this ranking position by developing a 10-point plan to improve
customer service which was implemented in 2012/13  In addition, significant extra resource has been
brought into the customer service team These changes have contributed to a marked reduction n the
number of written complaints in 2012/13 The Group 1s currently redesigning its processes across all its
customer facing functions with the aim of delivering significant service improvements for our customers

AMP4 sewer flooding programme — The Group responded to an information request from Ofwat issued
under sectton 203 of the "Water Industry Act 1991” concerning the properties clamed as safeguarded from
internal sewer flooding by capital schemes completed in 2009/10, specifically concerning evidence that
properties were likely to have flooded in the past The principal question will be whether TWUL has met its
legal obligations by complying with the relevant guidance, and Ofwat has indicated that it 1s unlikely to
conclude its investigations until the end of 2013  If Ofwat concludes Thames Water has mis-reported its sewer
flooding outputs, It may seek to impose sanctions including financial penalties of up to 10% of TWUL's
turnover attributable to regulated sewerage services

Mitigation: The Group has provided all the information that has been requested to support the numbers
claimed, and has met with Ofwat on several occasions to discuss its concerns The Group awaits the
conclusion of Ofwat's investigation and will continue to werk with Ofwat to understand its concerns and to
provide any further information required
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Credit rating — Any change to the regulatory landscape, including increased competihon and any changes to
the license, could have a detnmental effect on the credit rating of the sector The Group's credit rating would
also be affected If the delivery model for the Thames Tideway Tunnel project exposed the Group to increased
nsk, or by an obligation to deliver a large capital programme in the next regulatory period ("AMP6") A
downgrade n the credit rating would increase borrowing costs and reduce access to long-term debt markets,
putting at nsk the ability to meet financial covenants and potentially preventing the Group from paying
dividends

Mitigation* The Group I1s working to ensure that its Price Review preparations, Thames Tideway Tunnel
plans and other significant business changes take account of the impact on the credit rating, as well as
working with Government and Ofwat to ensure the financing impact of future proposals 1s understood
License changes for 2015-20 are credit rating neutral

Failure to meet regulatory targets — Thames Water I1s required to meet targets set by Ofwat, the EA, the
Drinking Water Inspectorate and other regulators In order to achieve this, the Group must continue to deliver
cost and efficiency savings In line with a challenging Final Determination, while maintaining and improving
operational performance and the standard of customer service Thames Water has a regulatory target to
maintain the serviceability of its assets as at least stable Dunng 2012/13 there have been increased
incidences of pollution from Its waste network, and as a consequence the reported status of the wastewater
network {wastewater asset performance below ground) has been downgraded from “stable” to “marginat’

Mitigation: Performance against regulatory measures i1s the subject of regular management review
Specifically in relation to the wastewater network, the Group has put increased financial and management
resource Into managing the network In addition, the Group continues to develop plans to return the
wastewater network to stable serviceability by identifying and then mplementing the additional activity
necessary to reverse the trend in performance

The effects of climate change and long-term changes in weather patterns — As the Group continues to
supply an increasing population, the effects of cimate change could adversely affect ts abilty to maintain its
Security of Supply Index {SoSI) requirements

Mitigation: The Group has been working on measures to reduce demand, mounting a widespread
awareness campaigns and providing free water saving devices, as well as making provision for new
sources of potable water and improving the integrity of its network  Together with other water companies
and regulators, the Group I1s actively participating in work to dentfy the wider water resources needs
across South East England

Future changes in laws or regulations — Thames Water 1s not funded by Ofwat for changes n obligations
that would affect the whole economy Consequently the Group may, for example, have to meet the obligations
resulting from changes in environmental legislation without adequate funding

Mitigation: Changes that are specific to, or are more matenal for, the water industry may be funded by
Ofwat as a relevant change of circumstance The Group engages actively with regulators where a change
1s likely, to ensure the imphcations are understood, and monitors the impact of recent changes to ensure it
can demonstrate the case for additional funding where it i1s jushfied

Failure of a major asset — A falure at one of the Group’s major assets could significantly impact the safety of
its workforce and the public, as well as interrupting supply to customers and breaching environmental and
regulatory targets The impact would be both financial and reputational

| Mitigation: The Group has a specific compliance process to manage each of the dentified nsks

Impact of iow inflation or deflation — In return for therr capital investment in assets, regulated water
companies earn a return on their RCV, which is adjusted by the RPI In times of low inflation or deflation, the
return on this investment will decrease relative to the cost of funding, reducing cash flow and shareholder
value
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Mitigation’ In order to protect the Group from these impacts, around half of the Group’s debt 1s iIndexed to
RP!, either directly in the underlying debt instrument, or by use of RPI swaps

Impact of recession on our bad debt charge — Continued economic weakness will make our customers
more ikely to default on their water bills, leading to increased bad debt expense to the Group

Mitigation: The Group keep Thames Water's debtor collection process under review to ensure that it fit
for purpose Dunng the year the process has been externally benchmarked and a new stage in the
collection process has been added TWUL 1s planning to submit an Intermediate Determination of K to
Ofwat for the iIncreases in bad debt inked to the recession If agreed this would increase customers’ bills
in 2014/15
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The directors who held office duning the year ended 31 March 2013 and to the date of signing were

Director

Appointments Resignations

Sir Peter Mason KBE

E Beckley

R Blomfield-Smith
C R Deacon
Dr P Dyer

S R Eaves

G | W Parsons
D J Shah

Y Shi

M S W Stanley
L Webb

R E Vernon

D Rees

K Roseke

D Xu

29 November 2012

28 September 2012
7 September 2012

29 October 2012
29 October 2012 2 January 2013
2 January 2013 24 May 2013
29 October 2012

During the year under review, none of the directors had significant contracts with the Company or any other
body corporate within the Group, other than thewr contracts of service, except as disclosed in note 31 to the

accounts

The following directors have formally appointed alternate directors to represent them when they are

unavallable
director alternate director

Name Appointment Resignation Name Appointment Resignation

R Blomfield-Smith 29 November 2012 P Noble 29 November 2012

C R Deacon R Evenden

L Webb C Pham

S R Eaves Marcus Hill

Y Shi 28 September 2012 F Sheng 28 September 2012

D J Shah K Roseke 2 January 2013
C van Heyningen 2 January 2013

R Vernon 29 October 2012 S Kotenc 29 October 2012

D Rees 29 October 2012 2 January 2013 8 Kolenc 29 October 2012 2 January 2013

K Roseke 2 January 2013 24 May 2013 D Rees 2 January 2013 24 May 2013

D Xu 29 Qctober 2012 F Sheng 29 October 2012
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Political and charitable donations and expenditure

No political donations were made by the Group (2011/12 £nil)

The Group contributed £5 1m n official sponsorship to the London 2012 Olympics that were hosted in the capital
city dunng July and August 2012 This sponsorship was paid for by Kemble Water Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, which 1s outside the regulated business group of TWUL

The Group made charitable donations totaling £551,599 (2011/12 £1,019,340) Details of these chartable
donations are

s £284,360 (2011112 £743,759) to Ten for Ten projects, of which £30,360 went to vanous educational and
recreational projects and £254,000 to the Thames Water Trust Fund for income depnved families

o £154,443 (201112 £118,680) to the Charties Aid Foundation
= £19,294 (2011/12 £61,129) to TWUL's principal charity, WaterAud

= £85,000 (2011/12 £60,000) to Thames 21, a range of chanties which assist in cleaning rivers and streams
within the Thames Valley

« £8502 (2011/12 £35,772) of other donations

In addition, fund raising activities by employees and contractors raised £113,000, to which the Group added
matching funds of £62,167 (included in the donations above)

The Company made no charitable donations durning 2012/13 (2011/12 £nil)

Employment of disabled persons

The Group 1s committed to fulfiling its cbligations in accordance with the Disability Discrimination Act 1995
The Group has policies and procedures In place that aim to ensure both job applicants and employees with
disabilities have equality of opportunity, are treated farrly and have a safe and practical workplace, free from
discnimination, bullying, harassment or vichimisation

Through disabiity and attendance management policies, support and training 1s provided from employees who
become disabled dunng the course of their employment so that they continue to work In a position appropriate
to therr experience and abilities

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Group's policy 1s to pay all suppliers, contractors and service providers according to pre-agreed terms
Durning the year under review, the average amount due to trade creditors represented 63 days {2012 60 days)
of purchases received from these creditors

The Company had no trade creditors at year end (31 March 2012 £nil)

Market value of land and buildings

The directors have considered the market value of the Group's land and buldings and are satisfied that therr
market vatue 1s not less than their net book value

Research and development
The Group's research and development programme consists of a portfolio of projects designed to address

technical needs across the range of water cycle actvites Research and development deliver innovative
technical solutions through a research programme aligned with business needs to address challenges for
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AMP5 and also provide specialist technical support to the business  Expenditure on research and
development totalled £3 9m fer the year (2011/12 £3 9m)

Going concern

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Group has sufficient resources for its present
requirements and therefore consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2012/13
financial statements Further information 1s set out in note 1 ‘Basis of preparation’ on page 38

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and each director
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit iInfermation and to establish that the Group's auditor 1s aware of that information

Directors’ indemnities

The Group has made qualfying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors and for the
benefit of other persons who are directors of associated companies and these remain in force at the date of
this report

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappcinted and KPMG
Audit Plc will therefare continue in office

Approved by the Board of Directors on & June 2013 and signed on its behalf by

oy

J Hanson

Company Secretary
Clearwater Court
Vastern Road
Reading RG1 8DB
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report
and the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
appticable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they have elected to prepare the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for
that penod

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent,

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explamed in the financial statements,

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Group and the parent company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and parent company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial information

included on Thames Water's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Kemble Water Holdings
Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Kemble Water Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 March
2013 set out on pages 33 to 78 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable faw and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by {aw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 31, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opimon on, the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors
Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements I1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March
2013 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements
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Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you If, In our opimion

» adequate accounting recards have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

= the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records or returns, or
= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit

N Mot T

W Meredith (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

6 June 2013
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Consolidated profit and loss account

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Turnover 2 1,803.6 1,700 2
Operating costs before exceptional items (1,299.1) (1,163 5)
Exceptional item — pension curtailment gain 3,5 - 400
Operating costs 3 (1,299.1) (1,123 5)
Group operating profit 504.5 5767
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 6 1.2 35
Profit before interest and taxation 515.7 580 2
Interest receivable and similar income 7 47.7 47 5
Interest payable and similar charges 8 (583 5) (634 7)
Net interest expense (535.8) (587 2)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (201) 70
Taxation credit/{charge) on loss on ordinary 9 0.1 (6 1)
activities
Loss for the financial year 23 (20.0) (13 1)

There 1s no difference between the loss on ordinary activities before taxation and the loss for the year

stated above, and their historical cost equivalents

All amounts relate to continuing operations
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Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m
Note £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12 1,513.8 1,557 3 - -
Tangible assets 13 11,173.2 10,6850 - -
Investment in joint ventures
Share of gross assets 3.6 36 - -
Share of gross labilittes (3.6) (3 B) - -
Other fixed asset Investments 14 - 01 1.0 10
12,687.0 12,242 4 1.0 10
Current assets
Stocks 15 8.5 104 - -
Debtors 16 546 9 582 1 3,488.9 32050
Investments 17 790.7 682 8 - -
Cash at bank and in hand 3.7 536 - -
1,377.8 1,328 9 3,488.9 3,205 0
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 18 (1,398.1) (1,557 9) (623.5) (537 5)
Net current (Liabilities)/assets (20.3) (229 0) 2,865.4 2667 5
Total assets less current liabilities 12,666.7 12,013 4 2,866.4 2,668 5
Creditors amounts falling due after more than
one year 19 (10,165.5) (9,351 0) - -
Provisions for iabiities and charges 21 (994.6) (1,047 3) - -
Net assets excluding pension liability 27 1,506 6 1,615 1 2,866.4 2,668 5
Pension assets, net of deferred tax 27.7 296 - -
Pension iabilities, net of deferred tax (214.6) {144 5) - -
Net pension hability 27 (186.9) {114 9) - -
Net assets including pension liability 1,319.7 1,500 2 2,866.4 2,668 5
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 1,991.6 1,916 1,991.6 1,991 6
Profit and loss account 23 {671 9) (491 4) 874.8 676 9
Total shareholders’ funds 1,319.7 1,500 2 2,866.4 2,668 5

The notes on pages 38 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 34 to 78 were approved by the Board of directors on 6 June 2013 and
signed on its behalf by

R e

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Chairman
Kemble Water Holdings Limited, registered number 5819262
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2m2
Note £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 28(a) 1,007.3 964 1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 28(b) (368 9) (387 8)
Taxation (9.7) 704
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial 28(c) (1,025.0) {1,117 4)
investment
Acquisitions and Disposals 28(d) (43.3) -
Equity dividends paid to shareholders 10 {(74.5) (165 1)
Net cash outflow before management of hiquid
resources and financing (514.1) (635 8)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from management of liquid 28(d) (107.9) 1197
resources
Net cash outflow before financing (622.0) (516 1)]
Fmancing
Net cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing 28(d) 5198 5279
{Decrease)/increase In net cash 28(d) {102.2) 118
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
(Decrease)/increase in net cash {102 2) 118
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing
- loans due within one year 1241 (462 4)
- loans due after more than one year {718.2) (73 4)
- capital repayment of finance leases 74.3 79
Cash inflow/{outflow) from increase in iquid resources 107 9 (119 7)
increase In net debt resulting from cash flows {514 1) (835 8)
Other non-cash movements
- RPI uplift on index-inked bond and debt 1ssue cost amortisation {140.6) (192 3)
- other non-cash movement - (0 1)
- farr value amortisation on loans at acquisition 10.2 101
Increase in net debt {644 5) (818 1)
Opening net debt {8,962.0) (8,143 9)
Closing net debt {9,606.5) (8,862 0)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Group loss for the financial year {20.0) (13 1)
Exchange adjustments {0.6) -
Actuanal loss on pension scheme (see note 27) (106.6) (93 6)

Deferred tax on actuanal loss on pension schemes 212

213
Total recognised losses relating to the year (106.0) (85 4)
No items relating to joint ventures went through the statement of total recognised gains and losses
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
Group Company
Year ended Yearended Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
(Loss)/profit for the financial year {20.0) (13 1) 2724 2652
Exchange adjustments (0 6) - - -
Actuanal loss on pension scheme (see note {(106.6) (93 6) - -
27)
Deferred tax credit on actuanal loss on 21.2 213 . -
pension scheme
Dividend (see note 10) {74.5) {165 1) {74.5) (165 1)
Net change in shareholders’ funds {180.5) {250 5) 197.9 1001
Opening shareholders’ funds 1,500 2 17507 2,688.5 2,568 4
Closing shareholders’ funds 1,3187 1,500 2 2,866.4 26685
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Prnincipal accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in deafing with items which the Group and
Company considered material in relation to the financial statements, except as noted below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the histoncal cost convention and with applicable
accounting standards in the UK and, except for the treatment of certain capital contributions, with the
Companies Act 2006 An explanation of this departure from the requirements of the Act 1s given in accounting
policy (e) below

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position, are set out Iin the Directors’ Report on pages 5 to 30 The financial position of the Group, its cash
flows, hquidity positton and borrowing facilities are described in the Directers’ Report

The directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Group and the Company have sufficient resources
for its present requirements and, therefore, consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the 2013 financial statements

Company cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the scope exemption avatlable under FRS 1 paragraph 5(a) and has not
presented a cash flow statement as these financial statements contain a consohdated cash flow statement and
are publically available

Changes to accounting policies

There have been no changes to the accounting policies from those used for the year ended 31 March 2012

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below

(a) Basis of consohdation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Group and entities controlled by the
Group (its subsidiaries), made up to 31 March 2013, and incorporate the results of its share of joint ventures
using equity accounting

(b) Subsidianes

Control 1s achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanied by a shareholding of more than one half of the voting nights, of an investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(¢} Revenue recognition

Turnover represents the farr value of the income recervable in the ordinary course of business for goods and
services provided and are recognised in accordance with FRS 5§ “Reporting the Substance of Transactions”
Turnover s recognised at the tme of dehvery of the service Should the Group consider that the criteria for
revenue recognition are not met at the time of a transaction, recognition of the associated turnover would be
deferred unbl such time as the cntena have subsequently been met No adjustment 1s made to turnover for
estimated bad debt charges These are charged to operating expenses

For metered customers, turnover includes an estimate of the sales value of water supplied and waste water
charges to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the period end, exclusive of value added
tax The estimated usage 1s based upon historical data, judgement and assumptions, actual results could differ
from these estimates, which would result in turnover being adjusted in the period for which the revision to the
estimates 15 determined The amounts recognised In turnover, but unbilled at the balance sheet date are
recorded as a prepayment

When a new property I1s connected to the networks, an estimate 1s made of the sales value of water supplied
and waste water charges to customers between the date of connection and the period end

For customers who do not have a meter, the amount billed 1s dependent upon the rateable value of the property,
as assessed by an independent rating officer The amount billed 1s apportioned 1n turnover over the period to
which the bill relates

Additional charges added to a customer's account as a result of debt recovery activity, such as court costs or
solicitors fees, are not recognised in turnover They are recognised as favourable operating costs when
payment is received

The Group only raises bills in the name of the “occupier” when it has evidence that an unmeasured property Is
occupied but cannot confirm the name of the occupier When the Group identifies the occupants the bill 1s
cancelled and re-billed in the customer's name If the Group has not identified an occupant within 6 months the
bill 1s cancelled and the property is classified as empty
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(d) Intangible assets
Goodwill

Purchased goodwill anising on acquisition, being the excess of the purchase pnce over the far value of the net
assets of a subsidiary, 1s capitalised and amortised to nil using the straight ine method over its estimated useful
economic Iife of 40 years Impairrment tests on the carrying value are undertaken on an annual basis as the
goodwill 1s amortised over a period greater than 20 years These tests involve a comparison of the book value
with the higher of the net realisable value and the value in use A life longer than 20 years 1S deemed
appropriate because the goodwill relates pnmarily to the regulated business of providing water and wastewater
services, which I1s expected to generate stable revenues and there are significant barrniers to entry to this
business

Profit or loss on disposal of a previously acquired subsidiary, joint venture or associated undertaking is
determined after iIncluding the attnbutable amount of purchased goodwill

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are measured inhally at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over therr
estimated useful ives Their carrying amount s reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary

Intangible assets currently compnise of licences and concessions These assets are betng amortised over their
remaining useful lives of 8 years

(e} Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprnse nfrastructure assets (mans, sewers and pumped raw water storage reservous
and sludge pipelmes), plant and equipment, land and buildings, and assets under the course of construction

The Group capitalises the directly atiributable cests of procunng and constructing tangible fixed assets These
costs include employee costs and other internal costs that are incremental to the business due to the scale and
nature of the capital implementation programme of the Group Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approprate, only when it 1s probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measurad
rehably Interest costs are not capitalised

The estimated useful economic lives of fixed assets and therr residual values are based on management's
judgement and experience of the type of asset These judgements are reviewed annually and when
management identifies that the actual useful lives of a specific asset or group of assets differ maternally from the
estimates used, the depreciatton charge I1s adjusted prospectively

The gam or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in the profit and loss account

Land and Buildings

Land and buitdings are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Freehold land 1s not depreciated
Buildings are depreciated down to their residual value over 15 to 60 years on a straight-line basis
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(e} Tangible fixed assets {(continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Plant and equipment consists of
operational structures, operational assets, fixtures, fitings, vehicles and computers, and fixed and mobile plant

These assets are depreciated down to therr residual values on a straight-line basis as follows

Operational structures 15— 100 years
Other operational assets 5 -40 years
Fixtures and fittings 5-7 years
Vehicles 4 - 5 years
Computers 3 -7 years
Fixed and mobile plant 3-40 years

Assets under the course of construction

Assets 1n the course of construction represent the directly attnbutable costs of projects that are expected to
result in a tangible fixed asset being commissioned and capitalised at the end of the project The balance 1s not
depreciated as assets are not considered to commence their economic hives until they are commissioned (and
transferred into the appropriate classification of tangible fixed assets)

Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise networks of below ground systems (water and sewerage networks) Al
expenditure on infrastructure assets i1s capitalised at cost The planned element incurred in maintaining the
operating capability of the network in accordance with defined service standards 1s expensed as Infrastructure
Renewals Charge ("IRC") included within the total depreciation charge recognised in the profit and loss account

The IRC recognised in 2013 reflects the Group’s expenditure plans for infrastructure assets for the peniod 2010
to 2025 (AMPs 5 to 7} as presented in the 2009 Final Business Plan The level of charge 1s kept under review
and updated annually to reflect the current level of infrastructure renewals expenditure All infrastructure assets
recognised in the Group's balance sheet relate to the regulated business of TWUL

Capital contributions

Capital contributions received in respect of infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed
assets This 1s not In accordance with Schedule 1 to the Companies Act 2006, which requires fixed assets to be
stated at their purchase price without deduction of contributions, with the contnibutions being accounted for as
deferred income This departure from the requirement of the Act 1s, in the opinion of the directors, necessary for
the financial statements to give a true and farr view because infrastructure assets do not have a determinable
finite ife  As infrastructure assets are accounted under renewals accounting, related capital contributions are
not recognised in the profit and loss account

The financial effect of this departure 1s disclosed in note 13

Grants and capital contributions received towards the cost of non-infrastructure assets are accounted for as
deferred Income and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the assets
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(e) Tangible fixed assets (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Intangible assets and tangible fixed assets are assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an indication of such

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, If any Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell, and value in use Value in use represents
the net present value of expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis using a rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) i1s reduced to its recoverable amount Impairment of
non-current assets 1s recognised in the profit and loss account within operating costs

Where an imparrment loss subsequently reverses, it 1s recognised in the profit and loss account and the carrying
amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not so as to exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment foss been recognised in prior years

The calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual values 1s hased on the directors’ best estimates of
future prices, output and costs and 1s therefore subjective

{f) Stocks

Stocks, other than Water Efficiency products are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventanes to their present location and condition Cost is catculated using the weighted
average method Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred \n marketing, selling and distribution

Stocks of Water Efficiency products which are to be provided to customers free of charge as part of Thames
Water's on-going water efficiency campaigns are recorded at cost and expensed to the profit and loss account
when they are given or sent to customers

{g) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred, except where 1t 1s virtually certain that the contract will be
awarded, In which case they are recognised as an asset and wniten off to the profit and loss account over the
Ife of the contract

{h) Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, s based on the taxable profit for the year and 1s
provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date Taxable profit differs from the profit on ordinary activities before

tax as reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{(h) Taxation (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 recognised, without discounting, in respect of all tming differences between the treatment of
certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which have ansen but not reversed by the balance sheet
date, except as otherwise required by FRS 19 *Deferred Taxation®

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
availlable evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits against
which to recover carned forward tax losses and from which the future reversal of underlying timing differences
can be deducted

Deferred taxation 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the years in which the
timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the profit and loss account except when it relates to items charged or
credited to equity, In which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with via the Statement of total recognised gains
and losses

{1) Leased assets

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers substantially all the
nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee Is classified as a finance lease All other leases are classified as
operating leases

Finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised in the balance sheet at their far value or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease

The corresponding liability 1s shown as a finance lease obligation to the lessor Leasing repayments comprise
both a capital and a finance element The finance element 1s wntten off to the profit and loss account so as to
produce an approximately constant penodic rate of charge on the outstanding obligation Such assets are
depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the penod of the lease to the first break clause

Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease

{) Pension and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes The Group accounts for these schemes In
accordance with FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits”

These schemes are independently, admimstered funds, for the substantial majonty of the Group's employees
Actuanal valuations are carred out as determined by the pension scheme trustees using the projected unit
credit method for both pension schemes at intervals of not more than three years, the rates of contribution
payable and the pension cost being determined on the advice of the actuaries, having regard to the results of
these valuations The Group believes that the assumptions utitsed in recording obligations under the two
schemes are reasonable based on prior expenence, market conditions and the advice of scheme actuanes
However, actual results may differ from such assumptions For any intervening reporting period, the actuaries
review the continuing appropriateness of the contnbution rates (a complete actuanal valuation 15 performed
every three years) Defined benefit assets are measured at fair value while habilities are measured at present
value (which approximates to fair value)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
) Pension and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

The difference between the assets and liabilities of the schemes are recognised as a surplus (to the extent that
the surplus 1s recoverable) or obligaticn in the balance sheet, net of deferred tax

The cost of providing pension benefits to employees 1s included in the profit and loss account within the cost of
employee benefits The difference between the expected return on scheme assets and interest on scheme
liabilities are included within other finance iIncome/expense in the profit and loss account

Actuaral gains and losses are recognised outside the profit and loss account In retained earnings and are
presented in the Statement of total recognised gains and losses

In addition to the defined benefit schemes, the Group operates a Defined Contribution Stakeholder Pension
Scheme ("DCSPS”), managed through Standard Life Assurance Limited {“Standard L#fe”) From 1 Apnl 2011 the
DCSPS 15 the only scheme to which new entrants to the Group will be eligible The assets of the DCSPS are
held separately from those of the Company and that the amounts charged to the profit and loss account
represents contributions payable to the scheme

The Group alsc operates two closed defined contrnbution pension schemes The Group has no further payment
obligations for these schemes However, defined funds for individuals are held within these schemes

(k) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange current on the date of the
tfransaction  Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the
rate of exchange current at the balance sheet date Gains and losses anising on retranslation are included in the
profit and loss account The foreign exchange loss shown In reserves I1s as a result of revaluation of certain
balance sheet accounts

On consolidation, the balance sheets of overseas subsidianes and joint ventures (none of which has the
currency of a hyper inflationary economy) are translated into sterling at exchange rates applicable at the
balance sheet date The profit and loss accounts are translated into sterling using the average rate unless
exchange rates fluctuate signfficantly in which case the exchange rate at the date the transaction occurred 15
used Exchange differences resulting from the trans!ation of such balance sheets at rates ruling at the beginning
and end of the year, together with the differences between profit and loss accounts translated at average rates
and rates ruling at the year end, are dealt with as movements on the profit and loss reserve as shown in the
Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Goodwlill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
iabities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing exchange rate Foreign currency borrowings are
recorded at the hedged rate at the balance sheet date

(n Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash at bank and in hand, deposits, and other short-term highly iquid
investments which are readily convertible on inihal investment into known amounts of cash at any time without
penalty or If a matunty or period of notice of not more than 24 hours or one working day has been agreed

(m) Financial habilites and equity

Financial habifites and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets

of the Group after deducting all of its iabiibes Equity instruments ssued by the Group are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{n}) Borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded as the proceeds received net of direct issue costs
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redempton and direct 1ssue costs, are
accounted for on an amortised cost basis to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method and
are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the year in which
they anse

{o) Financial instruments and derivatives

Interest rate swap agreements and financial futures are used to manage interest rate exposure Cross currency
forward exchange contracts are used to manage foreign exchange exposure associated with borrowings that
are not GBP denominated While the Group enters inte currency swaps to manage its exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates, the Group does not use denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The Group currently does not apply FRS 26 “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement”, and does
not apply FRS 29 “Financial Instruments Disclosures” The presentation requirements of FRS 25 “Financial
Instruments Presentation” have been applied In addition, certain veluntary disclosures have been prepared to
aid understanding and ensure comparability with prior year

Foreign currency and interest rate swaps are all in economic hedging relationships and amounts payable or
receivable on these denvatives are accounted for on an amortised cost basis Swaps are included within the
appropriate caption in note 20

{p) Accruals and deferred income

Grants and contributions receivable In respect of depreciating fixed assets are treated as deferred income,
which 1s credited to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the related assets

{a) Research and development

Research expenditure 15 written off to the profit and loss account in the year in which it 1s incurred

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be
rehably esttmated Insurance provisions are recogrused or released by assessing their adequacy using current
estimates of future cash flows under insurance contracts

(s) Dividends

Dwvidends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a hability at that date to the extent that they are
appropriately authonsed and are no longer at the discretion of the Group Unpaid dividends that do not meet these
cnteria are disclosed In the notes to the financial statements

Dividend income is recognised when there 1s a legal right to receive

(t) Provision for doubtful debts

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates the collectability of trade receivables and records provisions for
doubtful receivables based on expenence These provisions are based on, amongst other things, comparisons of
the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual write-off history The actual level of recewables collected
may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which could impact operating results positively or negatively

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates the value of cancellations that will occur in the future against

turnover booked, and not to be rebilled The provision 1s based on history of cancellations and subsequent rebills,
which could affect operating results positively or negatively
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{u) Exceptional items

ltems that the directors consider one-off in nature and are of such significance that individually or combined they
require disclosure to understand the performance of the business are disclosed as exceptional items There are
no such items in 2013 (2012 see note 3)

2  Segmental analysis
The segments by class of business are

TWUL. This incorporates the business activities of TWUL and its apportionment of farr value and goodwill
derved from its purchase by Kemble Water Limited

Other: All other activities of the Group including provision of engineering, utility network and asset and facilities
management services, land and property development, water supply to the competitive market and those
activities carried out in managing the Group, including insurance services provided by the captive insurer to the
Group and financing arrangements in the holding companies These balances also include intercompany
eliminations and consolidation adjustments

No geographic segmental analys:s 1s necessary as all material activity and net assets are within the UK

Profit and loss account by class of business

Year ended 31 March 2013 Year ended 31 March 2012
TWUL Other Total TWUL Other Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Turnover 1,791.9 11.7 1,803.6 1,694 9 53 1,700 2
Operating profit/(loss) 549.3 (44.8) 504.5 6439 (67 2) 5767
Profit on sale of fixed assets 10.8 04 112 39 (04) 35
Net interest payable* (415 2) (120 6) (535.8) (425 B) (161 6) (587 2)
Taxation 5.1 (5.0) 0.1 250 (31 1) (6 1)
Profit/(loss) after tax 150.0 (170.0) (20.0) 247 2 (260 3) (13 1)

* Interest payable in other relates to the funding required for the acquisition of the regulated group
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Balance sheet by class of business:

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
TWUL Other Total TWUL QOther Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1,513.1 0.7 1,513.8 1,566 3 10 1,657 3
Tangible assets 11,173.2 - 11,173.2 10,6850 - 10,685 0
Investment in joint ventures
Share of gross assets - 3.6 36 - 36 36
Share of gross liabilities - (3.6) (3.6) - {36) (36)
Other fixed asset investments - - - - 01 01
12,686.3 0.7 12,687.0 12,241 3 11 12,242 4
Current assets
Stocks 84 0.1 85 96 08 104
Debtors amounts falling due
within one year 572.8 (25.9) 546.9 647 9 (65 8) 582 1
Debtors amounts falling due
after one year (inter group loan) 2,015.0 (2,015.0) - 20150 {(2,0150) -
Current asset investments 748 7 42.0 790.7 619 4 63 4 682 8
Cash at bank and in hand - N7 31.7 27 50 9 538

3,344.9 (1,967.1) 1,377.8 32946 (1,9657) 1,328 9

Creditors amounts falling due

within one year {957.3) (440.8) {1,398.1) (1,460 4) (97 5) (1,557 9)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 2,387.6 (2,407.9) {20.3) 18342 (2,063 2) (229 0)
Total assets/(liabilities) less

current assets/(llabihties) 15,073.9 (2,407.2) 12,666.7 140755 (2,062 1) 12,013 4

Creditors amounts falling due

after more than one year (9,216 0) (949.5) (10,165.5) (8,050 2) (1,300 8) (9,351 Q)
Provistons for habilities and
charges (1,044.4) 49.8 (994.6) (1,052 6) 53 (1,047 3)

Net assets/{habilities)
excluding pension
(habilities)/assets 4,813.5 (3,306.9) 1,506.6 49727 (3,357 6) 16151

Net pension (liabilities)/assets (191.5) 4.6 (186.9) (119 2) 43 (114 9)

Net assets/(liabilities)
including pension (habilities)/
assets 46220 (3,302.3) 1,319.7 48535 (3,3533) 1,500 2

The net assets reflected under TWUL above include the net book values of goodwill of £1,513 Om (2012
£1,556 3m),far value adjustments to tangible assets of £1,8898m (2012 £1,9112m) and financial
instruments ncluded In creditors falling due after more than one year of £247 3m (2012 £257 5m) The
other business has a goodwill apportionment of £nil (2012 £nil)
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3  Group operating costs

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

213 2012

£m £m

Staff costs before exceptional item (note 5) 199.5 2019

Exceptional item pension curtailment gain - (400)

Staff costs 199.5 161 9

Materials and consumables 142.8 156 2

Other operating charges (net) 563.9 4701

Amortisation of goodwill and intangibles 449 44 4

Depreciation

- owned assets 3341 2981

- infrastructure assets renewal charge 135.3 1295

- assets held under finance leases 96 96
Rentals under cperating leases

- hire of plant and machinery 5.8 100

- other 6.3 57

Research and development 3.9 39

Auditor's remuneration 0.5 27

Foreign currency losses (0.1) (0 1)

1,446.5 1,292 0

Own work capitalised {staff and other costs) {147.4) (168 5)

1,299 1 1,123 5

Prior year exceptional item was a curtallment gain of £40 Om ansing from changes to certain provisions, In
respect of the Thames Water Pension Scheme The tax charge on this exceptional item 1s £9 6m and it had £nil
cash flow impact
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For performance purposes operating costs, operating profit and profit before tax are analysed as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Underlying operating expenses 7752 6819
Exceptional item — pension curtalment gain * - {40 0)
Total operating expenses 7752 6419
Total depreciation and amortisation 523.9 4816
Total operating costs 1,299 1 1,123 5
Underlying operating profit 504.5 536 7
Exceptional item — pension curtallment gain - 400
Operating profit 504.5 576 7
Underlying loss after tax {20.0) (43 5)
After tax iImpact of exceptional item - 304
Loss after tax {20.0) (13 1)
Included in operating costs I1s auditor's remuneration analysed as following
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's 33 33
annual report and accounts
Fees payable to the Company’'s auditor and its associates for other
services
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 352 340
Audit-related assurance services 96 140
All other assurance services 97 53
Taxation compliance services 9 22
Taxation advisory services 105 3
All services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or 1,384 1,881
proposed to be entered into, by or on behalf of the Company or any of
its associates
All other non-audit services 122 263
2,198 2,735

Fees for all other services above include £1 4m (2011/12 £1 9m) in respect of advice on the Thames Tunnel
These costs have been capitalised as part of the design phase of the project

The contract was awarded to

KPMG following a competitive tendering process in ine with the Group’s procurement processes

No other fees were payable to KPMG Audit Plc in respect of this year or the prior year
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4  Information regarding directors

Aggregate directors' emoluments: Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£'000 £'000

Salary 961 735

Highest paid director:

Total emoluments of the highest paid director of the Company, n respect of therr work done for the Group durng
the year, were £300,000 (2012 £300,000) None of the directors accrued any pension during either 2012/13 or

2011/12, or had any accrued pension under the Group's defined benefit scheme

During the year, an indirect subsidiary of the Company made a payment of £60,000 (2012 £62,000) to C R
Deacon, a director, for consultancy services and a payment of £16,976 (2012 £16,000) to R Blomfield-Smith,

for consultancy services

5 Staff numbers and costs

The aggregate payroll costs were as follows: Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
- Wages and salaries 158.7 168 2
- Social secunty costs 16.7 159
- Pension costs defined benefit scheme 188 169
- Pension costs defined contrnibution scheme 2.3 14
- Severance costs 4.9 13
2014 2037
Employment costs included within research and development (1.9) (18)
Net staff costs before exceptional item 199.5 2019
Excephtional tem pension curtallment gain - (40 0)
Net staff costs 199.5 1619

The average number of persons employed by the Group {including directors) during the year, analysed by

category, was as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Number Number

Qperations 4,279 4,239
Support 420 323
4,699 4,562

The Company has no employees (2011/12 none)
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6 Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 11.2 35
Taxation charge attributable, included in the tax credit for the period 2.6 16
7 Interest receivable and similar income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m

Interest income
- Net interest income from swaps 428 237
- Other interest income 49 238
47.7 475

Net interest iIncome from swaps relate to the net of all the income and expense from interest rate swaps taken

out to economically hedge externa!l borrowings Refer to note 20

8 Interest payable and similar charges

Yearended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Interest expense

Bank loans, overdrafts and other loans (558.8) (615 8)
Finance charges payable in respect of finance leases (5.9) (6 8)
Amortisation of fees and discounts (8.9) (97)
Net pension finance expense (see note 27) (99) (2 4)
Interest payable and similar charges (583.5) (634 7)
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9 Taxation on loss on ordinary activities

Analysis of (credit)/charge In year Year ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
UK corporation tax - amounts payable in respect of corporation tax for the - 03
year
Adjustments in respect of previous years 0.8 (14 9)
Total current tax charge/{credit) 0.8 (14 6)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences 354 459
Adjustment in respect of previous years 1.2 331
Current year adjustment due to tax rate change to 23% (2012 change to (39.2) (75 4)
24%)
Pensions tax rehef higher than pension cost in accounts 1.7 17 1
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge (0.9) 207
Tax {(credit)/charge on loss on ordinary activities 01) 61

Factors affecting tax charge/{credit) for year

The current tax charge for the year 1s higher than (2012 current tax credit higher than) the standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 26%) The differences are explained below

Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (20.0) (70
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the (4.8) (18)
UK of 24% (2012 26%)
Effects of
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation and other timing differences (35.4) {45 9)
Tax losses unable to be used 28.4 44 1
Disallowable expenditure and other permanent differences 154 210
Pensions tax relief higher than pension cost In accounts (3.68) (17 1)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years 08 (14 9)
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year 0.8 (14 8)

Of the deferred tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2013 of £0 9m (2012 £20 7m charge), a deferred tax
credit for the year ended 31 March 2013 of £2 6m (2012 E3 6m charge) 1s shown as a movement within note 21
provisions for labilities and charges, and a deferred tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2013 of £1 7m

(2012 £17 1m charge) i1s included within note 27 (Pension schemes)
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Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The tax charge includes a deferred tax credit of £39 2m to reflect the impact of the reduction of the corporation
tax rate from 24% to 23% from 1 April 2013 This change was substantively enacted on 3 Juiy 2012  An
additional charge of £4 2m (2011/12 £1 2m charge) has been included in the net tax credit taken to reserves
The tax charge in 2012 reflected a deferred tax credit of £75 4m resulting from the reduction in the corporation
tax rate from 26% to 24%

The March 2013 Budget announced that the corporation tax rate will further reduce to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015
The overall effect of the planned reductions from 23% to 20% would be to reduce the deferred tax hability by
approximately £118 Om

10 Dividends

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Second interim dividend in respect of 2011/13 3 74p (2011712 4 14p (In 745 825
respect of 2010/11)) per £1 ordinary share

First interim dividend in respect of the 2012/13 £nif (2011/12 4 15p (In respect - 826

of 2011/12)) per £1 ordinary share
74.5 165 1

11 Profit of holding company

A separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been presented as permitted by Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 The Company had profit for the year of £272 4m (2011/12 £265 2m)
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12 Intangible assets

Group
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At the beginning of the year 1,792 9 15 1,794 4
Addition 14 - 14
At the end of the year 1,794.3 1.5 1,795.8
Amortisation
At the beginning of the year (236 4) (07) {237 1)
Charge for the year (44 8) (1) {44 9)
At the end of the year (281.2) {0.8) {282 0)
Net book value
At the end of the year 1,513.1 0.7 1,513.8
At the beginning of the year 1,656 5 08 1,557 3

The Group has provided for additional consideration of £1 4m for the acquisition of the regulated group resulting
from a review of pre-acquisition habiities The additional goodwill arising on acquisition, being the excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of a subsidiary, has been capitalised and will be amortised to
nil using the straight ine method over its estimated useful economic life of 40 years

Other intangible assets include concessions, licences and similar nghts and assets

The Company has no intangible assets (31 March 2012 £nil)
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13 Tangible fixed assets

Group
Infra- Assets In
Plant and Land and structure course of
equipment buildings assets construction Total
£m £m £m Em £m

Cost
At the beginning of the year 3,8035 2,299 3 51793 1,515 4 12,797 5
Additions - - - 1,008 1 1,008 1
Transfers between items 478 5 1750 671 4 (834 8) 490 2
Disposals (32) (03 - - (35)
At the end of the year 4,278 8 2,474.0 5,850.7 1,688.9 14,2924
Capital contributions
At the beginning of the year {173 1) (173 1)
Additions (39 0) (390
Transfers between tems (480 2} (490 2)
At the end of the year (702 3) (702.3)
Depreciation
At the beginning of the year (984 4) {323 0) (632 0) (1,9394)
Provided during the year (293 8) (49 9) (135 3) (479 0)
Transfers between tems (29 3) - 293 -
Disposals 12 03 - 15
At the end of the year (1,306.2) {372.6) (738 0) (2,416.9)
Net book value
At the end of the year 2,972.5 2,101 4 44104 1,688.9 11,173.2
At the beginning of the year 2,819 1 1,976 3 4,374 2 1,515 4 10,6850

Depreciatron has not been charged on freehold land stated in the financial statements at cost of £155 7m (2012

£120 3m)

On 1 October 2011 the Group adopted 40,000km of private sewers The private sewers have zero cost,
depreciation and net book value as no cost was paid by the Group on adoption

The Company has no tangible fixed assets (2012 £nil)

The net book value of land and buldings compnses

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m

Group
Freehold 2,091 1 1,965 7
Long leasehold - over 50 years 7.5 78
Shert leasehold - under 50 years 27 28
2,101.3 1,976 3
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Details of the Group's tangible fixed assets, all of which are classified as plant and equipment, which are held
under finance leases are

£m
Cost
At the beginning and end of the year 2725
Depreciation
At the beginning of the year {155 7)
Charge for the year {9 6)
At the end of the year (165.3)
Net book value
At the end of the year 107.2
At the beginning of the year 116 8

14 Fixed asset investments

In accordance with FRS 9, where the carrying value of an individual investment 1s less than £nil, the negative
carrying value has been disclosed in provisions for habilities and charges within other provisions (note 21)

The associated undertakings and joint ventures are all unlisted

Group
Fixed asset investments £m
Cost
At the beginning and end of the year 01

Depreciation

At the beginning of the year -
Charge for the year (01)
At the end of the year {0.1)
Net book value

At the end of the year -

At the beginning of the year 01
Company
Investment in subsidiary undertaking £m
Cost
At the beginning and end of the year 1.0

The investment in subsidiary undertaking relates the Company's shareholding in Kemble Water Eurobond Plc
The Company has no (2012 £nily investments in joint ventures or associates

See note 30 for a list of principal substdiaries
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15 Stocks
Group
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 5.8 58
Finished goods and goods for resale 27 46
85 104
The Company has no stocks (2012 £nil)
16 Debtors
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m E£m £m
Due within one year
Trade debtors 206 4 256 2 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 3,488.9 3,206 0
Other debtors 142.3 901 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 198.2 2358 - -
546.9 582 1 3,488.9 3,2050
Company
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1s further analysed as follows
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Inter-company loans due within one year 1,890.6 1,990 6
Non-loan amounts due within one year 1,498.3 1,214 4
3,488.9 3,2050

A loan of £1,990 6m (31 March 2012 £1,990 6m) which incurs interest at 18% (2012 18%) 1s owed by the

immediate subsidiary company, Kemble Water Eurcbond Plc

undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand
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17 Current asset investments

Group
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Bank deposits 1709 1814
Money market funds 619.8 501 4
790.7 682 8

Current asset investments consist of short-term bank deposits with highly rated banks and triple A rated money

market funds

The Company has no current asset investments (2012 £nil)

18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Other loans 3459 4700 - -
Overdraft 803 - - -
Trade creditors — operating expenses 2732 2788 - -
Trade creditors — capital expenditure 160 4 2430 - -
Obligations under finance leases 10.5 56 5 - -
Corporation tax payable 11.9 210 - -
Group relief creditor - - 86.0 931
Taxation and social secunty 6.1 56 - -
Other creditors 110.4 1200 - -
Interest creditors 2257 2023 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 537.5 444 4
Accruals and deferred income 173.7 160 9 - -
1,398.1 1,657 9 623.5 5375

The amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are interest free and payable on demand

On 21 May 2013, Kemble Water Finance executed an amendment on its £425m Faciities Agreement after
receiving unanimous lender consent The amendments were {o extend the matunty date on Facility A to 30

September 2015 and to align the margin in ine with Facility B
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19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Secured bank loans 1,198 7 999 6 - -
Other loans 8,691.1 80418 - -
Obhgations under finance leases 102.4 1307 - -
Deferred income 173.2 177 1 - -
Accruals 01 20 - -
10,165.5 93510 - -

Other loans are all secured apart from one lean, £310 4m (2012 £310 4m) For further detail of secunty see
note 29

20 Financial instruments

Funding and treasury policy

The Group’'s treasury operations are managed centrally by a small specialist team within the Group reporting
directly to the Chief Financial Officer of TWUL The treasury team manages the financing {including debt,
interest costs and foreign exchange) for the Group Treasury policy I1s focussed on efficient and effective
management of cash and financial resources within the Group

The Group’s funding policy 1s to maintain a broad portfolio of debt The debt arranged via Thames Water
Utilites Finance Limited, Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Limited, Kemble Water Finance Limited and
Thames Water (Kemble) Finance Plc 1s diversified by source and matunty in order to protect profits against risks
ansing from adverse movements in interest rates and currency exposures

Derivative financial instruments, including cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and index-linked swaps,
are employed to manage the currency, interest rate and inflation nsks arnising from the primary financial
instruments used to finance the Group's activities

Short-term debtors and creditors

Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the following financial instruments disclosures, other
than the currency nsk disclosures

Company

The Company has no external borrowings and no derwvative financial instruments (31 March 2012 £nil)
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Interest rate nisk profile at 31 March

After taking into account the Group’s Interest rate and currency swaps, the Interest rate risk profile of the
Group's financial habilities and assets 1s as follows

Group financial assets

Total at floating rates

Total book value

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Current asset investments 790.7 682 8 7907 682 8
Cash in bank and in hand 317 536 1.7 536
822.4 736 4 8224 736 4

London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") and Bank of England base rate are the benchmark rates for floating
current asset iInvestments and cash at bank respectively

Group financial liabilities

Total at floating Total at Total at RPI Total
rates fixed rates linked rates book value
31 31 31 31 3 31 KY | 31
March March March March March March March March
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdraft
- £ Sterling 4584 2650 215.0 217 7 949 2 5169 1,6226 9996
QOther loans and finance leases
- £ Sterling 74.3 3160 49210 46482 33,8128 37346 88081 86988
-$USD - - (2.0) - - - (2.0) -
§32.7 5810 51340 48659 4,7620 4,2155 10,428.7 96984
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Interest rate risk profile at 31 March (continued)

Weighted average interest Weighted average period until
rate for fixed rate and RPI maturity for which rate 1s fixed for
linked debt fixed rate and RPI debt
Year ended Year ended 31 March 31 March
31 March 31 March 2013 2012
2013 2012
% % Years Years
Bank loans and overdraft
- £ Sterling 11 52 137 14 0
Other loans and finance leases
- £ Sterling 40 35 212 211
-$UsSD 47 - 59 -
All loans 38 37 206 204

Short term borrowings at floating rates bear interest at rates iinked to LIBOR Fixed rate and RPI linked
borrowings of £9,896 2m (2012 £9,117 4m) equate to 94 9% (2012 94%) of the total borrowings

Currency rnisk

The Group 1s not economically exposed to any significant currency nsk after matching foreign currency assets
and habiities and taking the effects of its hedging instruments into consideration
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Fair values
Farr value I1s the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction

between informed and willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale The table below sets out a
comparison of the book and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments

Book Value Fair value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to
finance the Group’s operations:
Financial assets.
Current asset investments 790.7 682 8 7907 682 8
Cash at bank and in hand 31.7 536 .7 536
Total financial assets 822.4 736 4 B22 4 736 4
Financial habilities:
Bank loans and overdrafts (1,622 6) (999 6) (1,622.6) (999 6)
Other loans and finance leases (8,599 1) (8,424 1) (9,297.2) (8,614 5)
Dernwvative financial instruments held to manage the
interest rate and currency profile
Cross currency swaps and forward foreign currency
contracts {(18.0) (96 3) (104.4) (217 5)
Interest rate swaps 3.0 05 (143.5) (53 9)
Index-hnked swaps {192.1) (178 9) (740.8) (518 0)
Total financial habilities {10,428.8) (9,698 4) {11,908.5) (10,403 5)
Net financial habilities (9,606.5) (8,962 0) (11,086.1) (9,667 1)

Other loans include bonds, which are publicly traded Fair values for these have been calculated using the 31
March 2013 quoted pnces Mark-to-market techniques (discounting expected cash flows at prevailing interest
and exchange rates) are employed in computing fair values for the remaining fixed rate borrowing and all
dernwvative financial instruments

The Company has no bank loans, overdrafts, other loans, finance leases or dernvatives financial instruments
(2012 £nil
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Maturities

The matunty profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s financial iabihties other than short-term crediters and
accruals and creditars more than 1 year, as disclosed on page 61, 1s as follows

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts
- Within one year 423.9 -
- Between one and two years 99.5 -
- Between two and five years 349.0 3327
- After more than five years 750.2 666 9
1,622 6 999 6
Other loans
- Within one year 2.2 4700
- Between one and two years 100.0 -
- Between twe and five years 635.3 7356
- after more than five years 7,9559 7,306 0
8,693.4 8,5116
Finance leases
- Within one year 105 56 5
- Between one and two years 45.7 281
- Between two and five years 56.6 801
- after more than five years - 225
112.8 187 2
Total borrewings 10,428 8 9,698 4
Loans are repayable between 2013 and 2062
The Group's loans wholly repayable after more than five years are
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Bank loans 750.2 666 9
Other loans 7,955.9 7,306 0
8,706 1 79729
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Other listed loans include

Other secured loans in order of matunty include
£200m 4 9% Fixed rate bond due 2015

£500m Euro 3 25% Fixed rate bond due 2016
£400m 7 241% Fixed rate bond due 2058*
£400m 7 75% Fixed rate bond due 2019

£200m 5 05% Fixed rate bond due 2020

£225m 6 59% Fixed rate bond due 2021

£175m 3 38% Index linked bond due 2021
£550m 5 375% Class B Fixed rate bond due 2025
£330m 6 75% Fixed rate bond due 2028

£300m 5 75% Class B Fixed rate bond due 2030
£200m 6 5% Fixed rate bond due 2032

£300m 4 37% Fixed rate bond due 2034

£600m 5 13% Fixed rate bond due 2037

20bn Yen 3 28% Fixed rate bond due 2038
£50m 3 85% Index nked bond due 2040
£500m 5.5% Fixed rate bond due 2041
£50m 1 98% Index linked bond due 2042
£55m 2 09% Index linked bond due 2042
£40m 1 97% Index inked bond due 2045
£300m 4 625% Fixed rate bond due 2046
£100m 1 85% Index linked bond due 2047
£200m 1 82% Index inked bond due 2049
£300m 1 68% Index inked bond due 2053
£300m 1 68% Index linked bond due 2055
£200m 1 77% Index linked bond due 2057
£350m 1 76% Index linked bond due 2062

€113m 2 30% CPI IL bond due 2022

*£400m Class A bond 1ssued with a finat maturity date of 9 Apnl 2058 with a fixed coupon of 7 241% until 9 April
2018 If at this date interest rates have nisen, the bond will be “put” at par by investors and redeemed the
Group Should interest rates have fallen, the bond will be called by the Group and either re-marketed for the
remaining 40-year percd at the underlying PCR rate (4 572%}) plus the prevailing credif spread or the Group will
settle related derivative contracts with bank counterparties and redeem the bond at par The fair value of this
denvative at 31 March 2013 1s a loss of £84 4m This reflects the potential future value of cash flows relating to
remarketing the bond

Group
Loans repayable by instalments after more than five years are 31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Other loans and finance leases - 225

The range of interest rates charged on outstanding bank loans, other loans and finance leases 1s 0 2% to 11 0%
(2012 02% to 11 0%) These interest rates are those contracted on the underlying borrowings before taking
account of interest rate protection

Borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2013 the Group has access to committed bank facilites of £3,241 4m (31 March 2012 £1,625 Om)
of which £1,551 4m (31 March 2012 £1,017 Om) had been drawn at the balance sheet date The bank facilities
are arranged through its subsidiary companies
+ Kemble Water Finance Limited - £425 Om (31 March 2012 £425 Om) of which £35C Om (31 March
2012 £350 0m) 1s drawn
« TWUL -£1,616 4m (31 March 2012 £667 0m) of which £1,201 4m {31 March 2012 £667 Om) 1s drawn
¢ Thames Water Utliies Cayman Finance Limited — £1,200 Om {31 March 2012 £1,200 Om) of which £nil
{31 March 2012 £nil} 15 drawn

The Group expects to draw on the faciliies held in TWUL dunng the next financial year The Group does not
expect to utiise the faciities held in Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Limited

The Group has a £10bn {2012 £10bn) secured bond programme through its wholly owned subsidiary, Thames
Water Utilities Cayman Finance Limited, which provides the Group with access to the capital markets in a range
of currencies and matunities £4 4bn (31 March 2012 £4 2bn) has been issued under this programme
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Previously debt has been raised via its wholly owned subsidiary, Thames Water Uthties Finance Limited

£2 8bn (2012 £2 7bn) remains In 1ssue at the balance sheet date

Legacy debt obligations will remain

outstanding, but it 1s not expected that any further debt will be 1ssued by Thames Water Utiihes Finance

Limited

21 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Deferred Insurance Other
tax liabilities provisions Total
£m £m Em £m
At 1 Aprit 2012 907 0 56 8 B35 1,047 3
Net charge/(credit) to profit and loss for the year {2 6) 52 44 {18)
Released dunng the year - - (79 (7 9)
Utiised during the year - - (43 0) (43 0)
At 31 March 2013 904.4 620 28 2 994.6

The elements of deferred taxation are as follows:

An analysis of amounts provided at cusrent tax rates 1s as follows

£m
Accelerated capital allowances 967 2
Other timing differences (62 8)
At 31 March 2013 904 .4

Total deferred tax provision-

Included in taxation provision above 904 4
Deferred tax asset provided on pension deficit (see note 27) {55 8)
At 31 March 2013 848 6

There 18 an unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses where the Group does not anticipate
taxable profits in the immediate future The amount of deferred tax asset unrecognised at 23% {2011/12 24%)

IS

31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m
Deferred tax asset not recogmsed in respect of tax losses 151.6 1316

See note 9 for more information on deferred taxation

Insurance liabilities

Insurance liabilities comprise provisions for claims received but not yet settled and anticipated claims not yet
reported These provisions are held by the Group's captive insurance company, Isis Insurance Company

Limited, and external providers
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Other provisions

Other provisions principally relate to claims against the Group and represent management’s best estimate of the
value of settlement and costs It 1s estimated that claims will be settled in more than one year

The Company has no provisions (31 March 2012 £nil)

22 Share capital

31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m
Group and Company
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,991,600,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 1,991.6 1,891 6
23 Profit and loss account
Group Company

Yearend Yearend Yearend Yearend
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

At beginning of year (491.4) (240 9) 676.9 576 8
(Loss)profit for the year {20.0) {13 1) 272.4 2652
Exchange adjustments {0.6) - - -
Actuanal loss recognised in the pension schemes {106.6) {93 6) - -
Deferred tax relating to actuanal deficit on pension schemes 21.2 213 - -
Dwvidends paid {74.5) {165 1) {74.5) (165 1)
At end of year {671.9) {491 4) 874.8 676 9

24 Contingencies

There are claims ansing in the normal course of business, which are in the process of negotiation The Group
has set aside amounts considered appropnate for all legal and similar claims as per note 21

Contingent habilities - AMP4 sewer flooding programme

TWUL has responded to an information request from Ofwat issued under section 203 of the Water Industry Act
1991 concerning the properties claimed as safeguarded from internal sewer flooding by capital schemes
completed in 2009/10 The information requested relates to the level of evidence required to support a
jucgment that a property Is likely to have flooded in the past

Ofwat first indicated its concerns in June 2010 and passed the investigation to its casework team in June 2012
Since this time, Ofwat has been considenng whether to take regulatory enforcement action in relation to this
case The pnincipal question will be whether TWUL has met its legal obligations by complying with the relevant
guidance Ofwat has indicated that it 1s unlikely to conclude its investigations until the end of 2013

If Ofwat concludes TWUL has mis-reported its sewer flooding outputs, it may seek to impose sanctions
including financial penalties of up to 10% of TWUL's turnover attributable to regulated sewerage services Any
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such potential financial impact cannot yet be quantified and, as such, no provision has been made within these
accounts

Contingent liabilities — £400m 7.21% puttable, callable, resettable bond due 2058

As descnbed in Note 17, if the Group were to account for denvative financial instruments associated with the
bond under IFRS a net far value loss of £84 4 milhon would be recognised as at 31 March 2013, reflecting the
potential future value of cash flows relating to the remarketing of the bond in Apn! 2018 The Group expects
that it will be able to successfully remarket the bond at fair value and a cash settlement will not be required and
so ho provision has been reflected to record this potential hability in these financial statements (under UK
GAAP)

25 Operating leases

At 31 March, the Group was committed to making the following annual payments n respect of non-cancellable
operating leases

31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Land and Land and
buildings Other buitdings Other
£m Em £m £m
Leases which expire’
- Within ane year 0.2 11 01 01
- In the second to fifth years inclusive 04 09 06 04
- Over five years 6.1 - 59 12
6.7 2.0 66 17

The Company has no commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases (2012 £nil)

26 Capital commitments

31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£Em £m

Group
Contracted for but not provided In the financial statements 842.5 1,0355

In addition to these commitments, the Group has long-term capital investment plans to meet performance and
asset condition requirements and to prowvide for new demand and growth The Company has no capital
commitments (2012 £nil)
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27 Pension schemes

Pension arrangements for the majonty of the Group's employees are of the defined benefit type, funded through two
Group pension schemes, TWPS and TWMIPS (see table below for details of each schemes’ respective deficit or
surplus), covering employees withun the Kemble Water Holdings Group, whose’ assets are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered funds Benefits accrue on a career average basis for TWPS and
finat salary basis for TWMIPS The defined benefit arrangements were closed to new employees from 1 April 2011
From this date, new employees have been offered membership of a defined contnbution scheme managed through
Standard Life

Contributions to the defined contnbution scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the penod to
which they relate Contributions to the defined contribution penston scheme In the year were £2 2m (2011/12
£14m)

The service cost of the Group, as included n the profit and loss account, represents the net of the total service
cost of the Group schemes and the pension contributions made by the other group companies into the schemes
in the financial penod

In addition to the cost of the UK Pension arrangements, the Group operates arrangements under which it augments
benefits on retirement These augmentations are funded by way of additional employer contnibutions to the
schemes In the year ended 31 March 2013 payments amounted to £0 2m (2011/12 £1 5m)

The latest actuanal valuation was undertaken as at 31 December 2010 on behalf of the pension Trustee's by AON
Hewitt Limited ("Hewntt”) (the independent and professionally qualified consulting actuanes to the schemes) This
valuation has been updated at 31 March 2013 by Mercer Limited (“Mercer”), independent and professionally
qualified consulting actuanes, using revised assumptions that are consistent with the requirements of FRS 17 and
shown in this note to the accounts The Group has taken advice from Mercer in respect of the funding position of
the Group penston schemes

A further actuanal valuation 1s currently being undertaken as at 31 March 2013 This valuation has not yet been
completed and has not been reflected in these financial statements

Net hability by pension schemes before tax

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Thames Waler Pension Scheme

Deficit in scheme (278 7) (180 1)

Thames Water Mirror Image Scheme
Surplus in scheme 557 735
Impact of irrecoverable surplus (25 8) (3% 9)
29.9 338
Other schemes 61 54
Liability before deferred tax asset (242.7) (151 1)

The Group has recognised a surplus in the Thames Water Mirror Image scheme to the extent that it may
possibly be able to recover it by paying a reduced rate of contributions in the future The recognisable surplus
has been calculated In accardance with FRS 17 as the present value of the current service cost projected over
the future working hfetime of all active members of the scheme, using the assumptions adopted at 31 March
2013

The assumptions used in the valuation of assets and habilities of the schemes are the same for both schemes,
therefore the following tables are for the combined values for both schemes
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Reconcthation of funded status to balance sheet 31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1,706.5 1,5516
Present value of scheme habihties (1,923 4) (1,662 8)
Deficit in scheme (216.9) (111 2)
Impact of irrecoverable surplus (25.8) (39 9)
Liability recogrused on the balance sheet (242.7) {1561 1)
Deferred tax asset 558 362
Net pension hiability (186.9) (114 9)
Presented in the balance sheet as
Pension asset, net of deferred tax 27.7 296
Pension liability, net of deferred tax {214 6) (144 5)
Movement in the present value of scheme labilities
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Opening present value of scheme liabilities 1,662.8 1,515 8
Current service cost Thames Water Utihities Limited 18.9 16 4
Current service cost Other Thames Water Group participating - 01
companies
Interest cost 76 2 800
Contnbution by scheme participants 0.2 02
Curtailment gain on changes to scheme benefits - {40 0)
Actuanal gains on scheme lhabiities 2305 154 2
Net benefit paid out (65.4) {65 4)
Termination pension cost 0.2 15
Closing present value of scheme labilities 1,923 4 1,662 8
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Movement in fair value of scheme assets

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Opening fair value of scheme assets 1,551 6 1,414 0
Expected return on scheme assets 66 6 774
Actuarnal gains on scheme assets 1098.7 789
Contrnibuttons by the employer Thames Water Utihties Limited 43.8 446
Contnbutiens by the employer Other Thames Water Group - 04
participating companies
Contributions by scheme participants 0.2 02
Termination pension costs - 15
Net benefits paid out (65 4) (65 4)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 1,706.5 1,5516
Expensel/{income) recognised in the profit and loss account:
Year end Year end
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Current service cost 18.9 16 4
Exceptional item — pension curtaiment gain® - (40 0)
Interest cost 76.2 80O
Expected return on scheme assets (66.3) (77 7)
Total expense/{income) recognised in the profit and loss account 288 (21 3)

* Dunng 2011/12 a curtailment gain of £40 Om ansing from changes to certain provisions, in respect of the
TWPS The gain arose as a result of changes to scheme benefits, which have reduced future habilities

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the profit and loss account:

Year end Year end

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Operating costs staff costs 18.9 (23 6)
Other finance expense 9.9 23
Total expensel(income) charged in the profit and loss account 28.8 {213)
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Analysis of amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:

Yearend Year end
31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 109.7 78 4
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme habilities (230 4) (153 7)
Adjustment relating to irrecoverable surplus 14.1 (18 3)
Actuanal loss recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and (106.6) {93 6)
losses
Cumulative amount of gains recognised in the statement of total recogmsed
gains and losses (401.8) (295 2)

Fair value of scheme assets and return on these assets:

The fair value of the assets held by the pension schemes, the long-term expected rate of return on each class of
assets and the average expected long-term rate of return obtained by weighting the individual rates in
accordance with the anticipated balance in the schemes’ investment portfolio are shown in the following table

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Long-term Long-term

expected expected
rate of Value rate of Value
return £m return £m
Equities 7.15% 575.5 7 11% 5330
Bonds 4.3% 1211 4 63% 329
Gilts 2.90-3.15% 866.4 186-311% 7859
Property 6.15% 99.8 6 11% 1033
Other assets 4 0% 437 311% 965

Average expected long-term rate of returnftotal fair

value of assets 4.6% 1,706.5 4 6% 1,5516

The Group employs a bullding block approach in determuning the long-term rate of return on penston plan
assets Historical markets are studied and assets with higher volatiity are assumed to generate higher returns
consistent with widely accepted capital market principles The assumed long-term rate of return on each asset
class 1s set out within this note The overall expected rate of return on assets Is then derived by aggregating the
expected return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the schemes
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The main financial assumptions used for FRS 17 purposes are as follows:

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Price inflation — RPI Linked 3.5% 3 1%
Price inflation — CPI Linked 28% 2 4%
CARE revaluation {CPIl max 2 5%) 2.5% 2 4%
Salary increase — TWMIPS 4 0% 36%

Pension increases ~ RPI Linked 3.5% 31%
Pension increases — CPI Linked 2.8% 2 4%
Discount rate for scheme habilities 4.3% 4 65%

In valuing the habilittes of the pension schemes at 31 March 2013, mortality assumptions have been made as
indicated below These mortahty assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality expenence of members

within the schemes and the assumptions also allow for future Improvements to mortality rates

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
TWPS members who joined before/after 1 January 1995
Life expectancy for a male pensioner frcm age 60 27 27
Life expectancy for a female pensioner from age 60 29 29
Life expectancy from age 60 for a male pensioner currently aged 40 29 29
Life expectancy from age 60 for a female pensicner currently aged 40 31 31
TWMIPS
Life expectancy for a male pensioner from age 60 26 26
Life expectancy for a female pensioner from age 60 28 28
Life expectancy from age 60 for a male pensioner currently aged 40 28 28
Life expectancy from age 80 for a female pensioner currently aged 40 30 30

History of fair value of assets, present value of liabilities, surplus in scheme and experience gains and

losses
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Dec
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1,706.5 1,5516 1,414 0 1,327 0 1,048 8
Present value of scheme Liabiliies (1,923.4) (1,6628) (1,5159) (14723) (1,1103)
{Deficity/surpius in scheme (216.9) (111 2) (101 9) (145 3) (615)
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Experience adjustments:

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Dec
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m

Experience gainsi/(losses) on scheme assets
Amounts 109.7 763 136 214 1 (250 8)
Percentage of scheme assets 6.4% 4 9% 59% 16 7% 24 1%
Experience gainsi/(losses) on scheme liabilities:
Amounts - 111 - - (44 4)
Percentage of scheme habilities - 07% - - 4 0%
Total amount recognised in the Statement of total
gains and losses*
Amounts (106.6) (93 6) 20 (111 9) (136 4)
Percentage of present value of scheme habilities 5.5% 57% 01% 7 2% 12 0%

The Group expects to contribute approxtmately £44 Om (2011/12 £43 8m) to the defined benefit schemes in the

next financial year

28 Analysis of cash flows

2B(a) Net cash inflow from operating activities

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Reconciliation of operating profits to net cash flow from 2013 2012
operating activities £m £m
Group cperating profit 504.5 5767
Depreciation charges 479.0 437 2
Amortisation 449 44 4
Decrease/{(increase) in stocks 1.9 (16)
Decrease in debtors 313 57
Decrease in creditors {(77) (11 8)
Deferred income release (13.6) (13 8)
Decrease In provisions {7.9) {4 2)
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions (25.1) (68 5)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,007.3 964 1

Depreciation includes maintenance expenditure on infrastructure assets in accordance with FRS 15, Tangible

Fixed Assets
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28(b} Return on investment and servicing of finance

Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Interest received 143.3 182 8
Interest paid (503.8) (6563 7)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (8.4) (6 9)
(368.9) (387 8)

28(c) Capital expenditure and financial investment

Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (903.6) (993 6)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (185.7) (176 8)
Capital contributions received 511 44 3
Sale of tangible fixed assets 13.2 87

{1,025.0) (1,117 4)

28(d} Acquisitions

Yearended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Investment in subsidiary undertaking (43 3) -
(43.3) -

Investment in subsidiary undertaking represents the cash paid to RWE (former owners of Thames Water Group)
in the year following settlement of pre-acquisition tax computations with HWRC

28 (e) Decrease in cash

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Unrestricted cash movement (104 3) 1186
Restricted cash movement * 2.1 -
(102.2) 116

*Included in cash and shown within the decrease In cash in the ¢ash flow statement 1s a restricted cash receipt
in the year of £2 1m (2011/12 £nil) This cash receipt relates to collatera! posted by denvative counter parties
that have failed to meet minimum credit rating crniteria assigned by Moody’s and has no impact on net debt
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23(e) Analysis of net debt

At Other non- At

1 April cash 31 March

2012 Cash flow movements 2013

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 536 {21 9) M7
Overdraft - {80 3) {80.3)
536 (102 2) {48.6)

Loans due within one year (4700) 124 1 - (345.9)
Loans due after more than one year (9,041 2) (718 2) (130 4) (9,889.8)
Finance leases due within one year (56 5) 46 0 - (10.5)
Finance leases due after more than one year (130 7) 283 - {102.4)
(9,698 4) (519 8) (1304) (10,348 6)

Liquid resources 682 8 107 9 790.7
Total (8,962 0) (514 1) (130 4) (9,606 5)

The Group includes its current asset investments (see note 17) as hquid rescurces

Other non-cash changes mainly comprise the carrying value uplift by RPI, of RPl index-inked loans This
adjustment is 1n accordance with FRS 4 “Capital instruments”, which requires the carrying value of such index-
Iinked loans to be recalculated at each balance sheet date

29 Guarantees

Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited, Thames Water Utilities Limited and its direct subsidiaries are Obligors
under the whole business securtisation entered into in 2007 The Obligors have all entered into a Secunty Trust
and Inter-creditor Deed Under this document each Obligor will guarantee the obligations of each other Obligor
with their future cash flows The guaranteed debt as at 31 March 2013 was £9 6bn {2012 £8 5bn)

At 31 March 2013 the Group has secured the overdrafts and loans of certain subsidiaries up to a maximum of
£20m (2012 £20m) The Group has also guaranteed facilities for contract bonding on behalf of certain
subsidiaries amounting to £0 8m (2012 £0 8m) at 31 March 2013

The Group has provided security by way of a debenture over its assets in relation to monies owed by the Group
under its credit facility agreement with RBS as Facility Agent This facility amounted to £425m (2012 £425m),
the amount outstanding at 31 March 2013 was £350m (2012 £350m) The chargee s RBS as Facility Agent

The Isis Insurance Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, has letters of credit in 1ssue
totaling £3 9m (2012 £3 9m), and £0 3m (2012 £0 5m} secured under a Secunty Trust Agreement Security
for these 1s provided by the Company to the value of £3 9m invested in a fixed term deposit held with Royal
Bank of Scotland Internationa! Limited and £0 3m held by Barclays Trustees Limited

In addition, there are a number of parent company guarantees In respect of subsidiary company contractual

obligations that have been entered into in the normal course of business  No unprovided loss 1s expected to
anse under these arrangements
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30 Group undertakings

At 31 March 2013, the Group held more than 10% of the allotted share capital of the following principal

undertakings

UK
Kembie Water Eurocbond Plc

Kemble Water Liberty Limited
Kemble Water Structure
Limged

Kemble Water Finance Limited
Kemble Water Investments

Limited

Kemble Water Limited
Thames Water Limited

Thames Water Utiihies Limited

Thames Water Utiliies Finance
Limited

Thames Water Utilties
Cayman Finance Limited

Thames Water (Kemble)
Finance Plc

Isis Insurance Company
Limited
Kennet Properties Limited

Thames Water Investments
Limited

Thames Water International
Services Limited

Thames Water Property
Services Limited

Thames Water Commercial
Services Limited

Trans4m Limited
{In administration)

Country of Class of
incorporatic  share

n capital
registration held
and

operation

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Qrdinary
Wales

England & QOrdinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

Cayman Ordinary
Islands

England & Orchinary
Wales

Guernsey Ordinary
England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

England & Ordinary
Wales

Proportion
of shares
held
directly

100%

Proportion Basis of Nature of business

of shares consolidation

held

indirectly

- Subsidiary Investment holding
company

100% Subsidiary Investment holding
company

100% Subsidiary Investment holding
company

100% Subsidiary investment holding
company

100% Subs|d|ary Investment h°|d|ng
company

100% Subsidiary Investment holding
company

100% Subsidiary Holding company

100% Subsidiary Water and
wastewater services

100% Subsidiary Finance Company

100% Subsidiary Finance Company

100% Subsidiary Finance Company

100% Subsidrary Insurance

100% Subsidiary Property

100% Subsidiary Property

100% Subsidiary Marketing of techrucal
managenal services

100% Subsidiary Property

100% Subsidiary Commercial water
supply

25% Investment Contract

management for
stations and ciwil
assets

Advantage 1s taken of section 410 of the Companies Act 2006 and full information will be annexed to the next
Annual Return delivered to the Registrar of Companies after the accounts in question have been approved

under section 233
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31 Related parties

Dunng the year, the Group completed the following sales to and purchases from related parties, all of which
were undertaken at arm's length commercial prices in the ordinary course of business

Year Year Year Year

ended ended ended ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2013 2012 2012

Value Amount Value Amount

Related party Nature of transaction £m due £m due
£m £m

Macquane Group Limited Fees payable for management 4.3 1.0 42 10

and other services

Ounng the year, a substdiary of the group incurred advisory fee charges of £60,000 (2012 £62,000) for
consultancy services provided by C R Deacon, a director and £16,976 (2011/12 £16,000) for consultancy
services provided by R Blomfield-Smith, a director

32 Immediate and ultimate parent company and controlling party

Kemble Water Holdings Limited 1s owned by a consorbium of investors led by Macquarie European
Infrastructure Fund I LP (*MEIF 27), wholesale investment funds which make long-term investments n
infrastructure and related businesses located across Europe The directors do not consider there to be an
ultimate parent or controling party Kemble Water Holdings Limited 1s the largest group to consolidate these
financial statements

The Company's other shareholders are internationat pension funds and institutional iInvestors
MEIF 2 invests in businesses which

» Provide an essential service to the community

» Have a strong competitive position

s Generate stable cash flows over the long term

MEIF 2 aims {o deliver sustainable cash yields and moderate capital growth from their diversified portfolios of
quality infrastructure investments

MEIF 2 1s managed by Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets (Europe) Limited ("MIRAEL") MIRAEL 1s a

wholly owned member of the Macquarie Group, and i1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authonty MIRAEL I1s resourced by executives of Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets
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33 Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Group I1s party to a number of contractuat arrangements for the purposes of the Group's principal activities
that are not required to be included on its balance sheet The principal off-balance sheet arrangements are
hsted below

» Operating leases (see note 25)

+ Qutsourcing contracts

« Dernvative financial instruments (see note 20)

In respect of outsourcing contracts, the Group has entered into vanous arrangements to outsource the provision
of certain back-office and operational functions with third party providers These outsourced arrangements
include IT support, Legal Services, metenng services, capital delivery and Customer Service  These
arrangements are on commercial terms and no associated penalty or termination clauses will have a matenal
impact on the financial position of the Group
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